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ReflectiReflectiReflectiReflectiReflectiononononons os os os os offfff
thththththe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditorditorditorditorditor
GenGenGenGenGenerererereralalalalal
This report is definitely a tribute to all of the
employees of my Office for their hard work and
dedication focused on meeting the information
needs of the Members of the Legislative Assembly
(MLAs), and through them, the citizens of Manitoba
by providing non-partisan advice, assurance,
reporting of findings, and recommendations.

During 2003/04, my staff has taken on many new
auditing/reporting challenges in order to fulfill the
diverse responsibilities we have under The Auditor
General Act.  I continue to believe that we are an
effective agent for positive change in the public
sector.  Whether promoting improvements in
financial reporting to the citizens of Manitoba for
the Public Accounts, municipalities, school boards,
sponsor-managed housing organizations, and
regional health authorities; recommending
improvements in government operations;
highlighting the importance of effective governance
in the public sector; or encouraging the adoption of
performance reporting, our work in these areas is
becoming more integrated in order to coordinate
and strengthen the basis for our recommendations.

Creativity enables us to perform diverse work with a
limited staff complement.  With the complexity of
public sector issues increasing, I continue to focus
on the importance of continuous learning by
ensuring that my staff, through training and
development opportunities, are positioned to
address challenges that may arise.

I am proud of the work we have done during the
past year, and I am encouraged by the
receptiveness of the Province to the
recommendations in our recent reports.  I continue
to encourage the Members of the Legislative
Assembly, particularly the members of the Public
Accounts Committee, to reflect on the
recommendations the Office has made and to
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consider how the Assembly can further use the work
of the Office to achieve positive outcomes in the
areas of improved financial reporting, strengthened
accountability and transparency in the use of public
monies, strengthened governance practices in the
public sector, and improved public performance
reporting.

Jon W. Singleton, CA•CISA
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SignificantSignificantSignificantSignificantSignificant
AAAAAccomplishmccomplishmccomplishmccomplishmccomplishmenenenenentststststs
fffffor 2003/04or 2003/04or 2003/04or 2003/04or 2003/04
• Our “Report on the Audit of the PublicReport on the Audit of the PublicReport on the Audit of the PublicReport on the Audit of the PublicReport on the Audit of the Public

AAAAAccounccounccounccounccounts fts fts fts fts for thor thor thor thor the Ye Ye Ye Ye Year Enear Enear Enear Enear Enddddded Med Med Med Med Marararararch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003”
was issued in January 2004.  The report
provided comprehensive information on what is
contained in the Public Accounts and the
applicable legislation impacting the
presentation of financial information to the
Legislative Assembly and the citizens of
Manitoba.  This contributed to increasing public
knowledge around the differences between the
financial statements prepared for Balanced
Budget Legislation and the financial statements
called the Summary Financial Statements which
reflect the result of provincial financial
decision-making.  The Summary Financial
Statements are the statements prepared on a
basis recommended by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants.  The Auditor General
garnered support for the province moving to
publicly emphasizing financial results based on
the Summary Financial Statements from
professional organizations within the Province
of Manitoba.

• Our Office contributed to the Government’s
decisions to improve the Summary Financial
Statement presentation and disclosure in a
number of areas:

- Recognition of the unfunded liability for
employee future benefits of non-devolved
health care facilities;

- Revision to the Statement of Net Debt to
reflect the deferred charge for non-devolved
health care facilities as a component of net
debt;

- Disclosure regarding the existence of
environmental liabilities;

Public AccountsPublic AccountsPublic AccountsPublic AccountsPublic Accounts

Public AccountsPublic AccountsPublic AccountsPublic AccountsPublic Accounts
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- Presentation of the Summary Budget figures
on a basis consistent with the presentation
of the actual figures;

- Separate disclosure of both fixed and
floating interest rates and repayment terms
(installments due) on loans and advances;

- Separate disclosure of cash and cash
equivalents, temporary and portfolio
investments with parallel treatment on the
Statement of Cash Flow;

- Separate disclosure of the basis of
accounting, market values and investment
income regarding cash and cash equivalents,
temporary and portfolio investments;

- Separate disclosure of the gross amounts of
accounts receivable and the valuation
allowances for accounts receivable; and

- Modification to the Schedule of Tangible
Capital Assets reflecting separate disclosure
of additions and disposals of tangible capital
assets.

• The report “Investigation of Hecla Island LandInvestigation of Hecla Island LandInvestigation of Hecla Island LandInvestigation of Hecla Island LandInvestigation of Hecla Island Land
and Property Transactionsand Property Transactionsand Property Transactionsand Property Transactionsand Property Transactions” was released in
September 2003.  Manitoba Conservation
accepted all of the recommendations and
committed to implementing them as quickly as
practical.  This led to changes in the
application process for the leasing of cottage
lots, and new legislation regarding the control
and disposal of Crown Lands in the Province.
Certain matters raised in the report were
referred to the RCMP for further investigation.

• In August 2003, we issued a report titled “AnAnAnAnAn
ExExExExExaminaminaminaminaminatiatiatiatiation oon oon oon oon of Le Collègf Le Collègf Le Collègf Le Collègf Le Collège de de de de de Saine Saine Saine Saine Saint-Bonift-Bonift-Bonift-Bonift-Bonifaceaceaceaceace”.
Recommendations from this work were
accepted and when fully implemented will
provide for improved public disclosure and
transparency.  A positive outcome of this
examination was that the financial statements
for the College were tabled in the Legislature
in 2004 for the first time.  The Office also
prepared a separate technical report for the
College on its information technology (IT)
systems providing recommendations for future
IT improvements.

Hecla InvestigationHecla InvestigationHecla InvestigationHecla InvestigationHecla Investigation

Le Collège de Saint-Le Collège de Saint-Le Collège de Saint-Le Collège de Saint-Le Collège de Saint-

Boniface ExaminationBoniface ExaminationBoniface ExaminationBoniface ExaminationBoniface Examination
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• “Follow-Up On Previously IssuedFollow-Up On Previously IssuedFollow-Up On Previously IssuedFollow-Up On Previously IssuedFollow-Up On Previously Issued
Recommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning and
Performance MeasurementPerformance MeasurementPerformance MeasurementPerformance MeasurementPerformance Measurement” was released in
December 2003 encouraging the Government to
strengthen its commitment to the central
principles underlying effective planning,
measurement and public reporting.

• “AAAAAttributes ottributes ottributes ottributes ottributes of Mf Mf Mf Mf Manananananaginaginaginaginaging ang ang ang ang and Reportind Reportind Reportind Reportind Reportinggggg
Results: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior Management”
released in March 2004 identified a substantial
gap between what respondents considered to
be important attributes and what actual
performance is in implementing these
attributes.

• Our Office completed a report titled “A ReviA ReviA ReviA ReviA Reviewewewewew
of the Symmetry Between the Accountingof the Symmetry Between the Accountingof the Symmetry Between the Accountingof the Symmetry Between the Accountingof the Symmetry Between the Accounting
Principles of the Regional Health Authorities,Principles of the Regional Health Authorities,Principles of the Regional Health Authorities,Principles of the Regional Health Authorities,Principles of the Regional Health Authorities,
Manitoba Health and the Province ofManitoba Health and the Province ofManitoba Health and the Province ofManitoba Health and the Province ofManitoba Health and the Province of
MMMMManitobaanitobaanitobaanitobaanitoba” which was published in the “AAAAAuuuuuditditditditdit
ooooof thf thf thf thf the Publie Publie Publie Publie Public Ac Ac Ac Ac Accounccounccounccounccounts fts fts fts fts for thor thor thor thor the Ye Ye Ye Ye Year Enear Enear Enear Enear Endddddededededed
MMMMMarararararch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003ch 31, 2003”.  As a result of this review:

- An agreement was reached with the
Department of Finance on the recording of
employee future benefits for both devolved
and non-devolved health care facilities in the
Special Purpose Financial Statements, the
Summary Financial Statements, the Manitoba
Health Services Insurance Plan Financial
Statements, and on the related impact on
the financial statements of both devolved
and non-devolved health care facilities;

- The Province will begin to record the
liabilities for future employee benefits of
approximately $173 million in the Special
Purpose Financial Statements effective
April 1, 2004;

- A number of recommendations regarding the
financial statements of Regional Health
Authorities (RHA) were provided to the
Department of Health, who in turn,
requested certain disclosure and presentation
changes be made prospectively on RHA
financial statements.  This in turn, increased
the comparability between RHA financial
statements.

Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting

Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting

RHA/Manitoba Health/RHA/Manitoba Health/RHA/Manitoba Health/RHA/Manitoba Health/RHA/Manitoba Health/

Provincial AccountingProvincial AccountingProvincial AccountingProvincial AccountingProvincial Accounting

Principles SymmetryPrinciples SymmetryPrinciples SymmetryPrinciples SymmetryPrinciples Symmetry
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• Released a consolidation of reports in March
2004, “A ReviA ReviA ReviA ReviA Review oew oew oew oew of Crf Crf Crf Crf Crown Corporown Corporown Corporown Corporown Corporatiatiatiatiationonononons Couns Couns Couns Couns Councilcilcilcilcil
anananananddddd Compli Compli Compli Compli Compliananananance Ace Ace Ace Ace Auuuuuditsditsditsditsdits”.  Our work on the
review of Crown Corporations Council identified
a number of learnings for organization whose
functions include monitoring, providing advice,
and making recommendations.  The other
chapter included a grant accountability review
in Family Services and Housing Child Protection
and Support Services; A Review of the Student
Records Section of the Professional Certification
and Student Records Unit; Northern Manitoba
Community Councils’ Financial Reporting
Standards; University of Winnipeg Financial
Review; Hudson’s Bay Company Archives
Review; and an update on the status of
Municipal Financial Accounting and Reporting
Standards in Manitoba.

• Completed the fieldwork leading to the
issuance of “Investigation of Hydra House Ltd.Investigation of Hydra House Ltd.Investigation of Hydra House Ltd.Investigation of Hydra House Ltd.Investigation of Hydra House Ltd.
and A Review of the Related Department ofand A Review of the Related Department ofand A Review of the Related Department ofand A Review of the Related Department ofand A Review of the Related Department of
Family Services and Housing FinancialFamily Services and Housing FinancialFamily Services and Housing FinancialFamily Services and Housing FinancialFamily Services and Housing Financial
AAAAAccounccounccounccounccountability Frtability Frtability Frtability Frtability Framamamamameworkeworkeworkeworkework”.  This work
highlighted the importance of having service
purchase agreements in place with external
service providers and strong financial
monitoring procedures for ensuring financial
compliance.

• A number of recommendations from our May
2003 report titled “Dakota Tipi Gaming“Dakota Tipi Gaming“Dakota Tipi Gaming“Dakota Tipi Gaming“Dakota Tipi Gaming
Commission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation Gaming
Accountability in Manitoba”Accountability in Manitoba”Accountability in Manitoba”Accountability in Manitoba”Accountability in Manitoba” were incorporated
into Legislation passed in the Spring session of
the Legislature.

• Our December 2000 report to the Legislature on
“Performance Reporting in Annual Reports:Performance Reporting in Annual Reports:Performance Reporting in Annual Reports:Performance Reporting in Annual Reports:Performance Reporting in Annual Reports:
Current Practices Among Crown EntitiesCurrent Practices Among Crown EntitiesCurrent Practices Among Crown EntitiesCurrent Practices Among Crown EntitiesCurrent Practices Among Crown Entities” led
to the following developments in 2003/04:

- The Manitoba Chamber of Commerce advised
it would promote the attributes of
performance reporting presented in that
report;

- Manitoba Health sought the input of the
Office in developing guidelines on
performance reporting to be used by the
Regional Health Authorities;

Crown CorporationsCrown CorporationsCrown CorporationsCrown CorporationsCrown Corporations

Council & ComplianceCouncil & ComplianceCouncil & ComplianceCouncil & ComplianceCouncil & Compliance

AuditsAuditsAuditsAuditsAudits

Hydra HouseHydra HouseHydra HouseHydra HouseHydra House

InvestigationInvestigationInvestigationInvestigationInvestigation

First Nation GamingFirst Nation GamingFirst Nation GamingFirst Nation GamingFirst Nation Gaming

AccountabilityAccountabilityAccountabilityAccountabilityAccountability

Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting
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- The Manitoba Gaming Control Commission
initiated a strategic planning review in
2003/04 as a result of our management
letter to them regarding performance
reporting; and

- Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation sought
our input with respect to changes they can
make to their annual report to bring it in line
with effective performance reporting
practices.

• During 2003, our Office completed a report
titled “A ReviA ReviA ReviA ReviA Review oew oew oew oew of Genf Genf Genf Genf Gentax:  An Intax:  An Intax:  An Intax:  An Intax:  An Integrtegrtegrtegrtegrated Tated Tated Tated Tated Taxaxaxaxax
PrPrPrPrProcessinocessinocessinocessinocessing Sog Sog Sog Sog Softwarftwarftwarftwarftware Applie Applie Applie Applie Applicaticaticaticaticationonononon”.  Overall, we
concluded that the implementation of this
software with respect to Health and Education
Tax, Retail Sales Tax and Corporation Capital
Tax, and the related data conversion, was
successful.  We were satisfied with the
existence and effectiveness of internal controls.
A further detailed report with recommendations
was provided to the Division to assist with
specific internal control improvements.  This
report was published in the “AAAAAuuuuudit odit odit odit odit of thf thf thf thf theeeee
PubliPubliPubliPubliPublic Ac Ac Ac Ac Accounccounccounccounccounts fts fts fts fts for thor thor thor thor the Ye Ye Ye Ye Year Enear Enear Enear Enear Enddddded Med Med Med Med Marararararch 31,ch 31,ch 31,ch 31,ch 31,
20032003200320032003”.

• Issued “InfInfInfInfInformormormormormatiatiatiatiation Ton Ton Ton Ton Technechnechnechnechnology Reportsology Reportsology Reportsology Reportsology Reports” in
March 2004, a consolidation of three reports:
Red River College, Information Technology
Organization in the Province, and Computer
Security Incident Response Capability in the
Province.  The contents of the reports
contributed to improvements in the areas
reviewed.

• In September 2003, we successfully hosted, in
partnership with the Clerks of the Public
Accounts Committee, the 2003 CCOLA/CCPAC
Conference with legislative auditors and Public
Accounts Committee delegates from across
Canada.

• The Office was requested to make a
presentation at the popular Organization and
Staff Development (OSD) course on policy
development which our Office initiated and
developed.

Gentax ReviewGentax ReviewGentax ReviewGentax ReviewGentax Review

InfInfInfInfInformation Tormation Tormation Tormation Tormation Technechnechnechnechnololololologyogyogyogyogy

ReportsReportsReportsReportsReports

CCOLA/CPCCOLA/CPCCOLA/CPCCOLA/CPCCOLA/CPAAAAAC ConferC ConferC ConferC ConferC Conferenenenenencecececece

Policy DevelopmentPolicy DevelopmentPolicy DevelopmentPolicy DevelopmentPolicy Development

CourseCourseCourseCourseCourse
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• During 2003/04, we converted our existing
paper-based audit methodology for our
financial statement audits onto the TeamMate
electronic working paper software package.
Work is nearing completion on the development
of the software for use in all work performed
by the Office.

• In the Spring of 2004 we conducted an
employee opinion survey to provide input into
future internal communication and human
resource initiatives.

• In December 2003 we conducted a citizen
survey to gauge citizen awareness of the Office
of the Auditor General.

Employee OpinionEmployee OpinionEmployee OpinionEmployee OpinionEmployee Opinion

SurveySurveySurveySurveySurvey

Citizen SurveyCitizen SurveyCitizen SurveyCitizen SurveyCitizen Survey

Introduction ofIntroduction ofIntroduction ofIntroduction ofIntroduction of

TTTTTeamMateeamMateeamMateeamMateeamMate
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Organization Chart
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Our Team
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Legal Status
Pursuant to The Auditor General Act, the Auditor
General serves as an Officer of the Legislative
Assembly.  The Act gives the Auditor General the
responsibility, authority, and independence to audit
and publicly report on all government organizations
as well as to conduct audits of recipients of public
monies.  By law, our reports are provided to
Members of the Legislative Assembly of Manitoba.

Independence
and Role
The Office of the Auditor General is an independent
office of the Legislative Assembly.  The Auditor
General plays an important role on behalf of the
citizens of Manitoba in the process by which the
legislature holds the government of the day
accountable for its actions.

In fulfilling that role, the Office has the responsibility,
on behalf of the public, to bring to the attention of
the legislature, and to officials of the Government,
anything that we consider “should be brought to the
Assembly’s attention”.

The Auditor General Act ensures that the Auditor
General is independent from elected and appointed
officers including the Assembly’s Committees and
boards.  The Auditor General is appointed for a 10
year term.

The Office policies require all employees to confirm
whether they have relationships with the
Government that could be perceived to affect their
independence and objectivity.
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Finances and
Resources
The Legislative Assembly Management Commission,
an all-party Legislative Committee, reviews and
approves our annual budget.  The Office of the
Auditor General’s financial statements, relating to
the year ending March 31, 2004, have been audited
by a firm of Chartered Accountants and are
presented in this report (see Financial Accountability
Section).

Operating
Principles
IndependenceIndependenceIndependenceIndependenceIndependence

• We conduct our work in an objective and
unbiased manner.

Balanced PerspectiveBalanced PerspectiveBalanced PerspectiveBalanced PerspectiveBalanced Perspective

• We put forth well considered and fair
conclusions based on analysis of all opinions
and where appropriate, reporting on strengths
as well as weaknesses.

TTTTTeameameameameamworkworkworkworkwork

• We work together cooperatively and in a
coordinated manner to achieve a common goal.

AAAAAccounccounccounccounccountabilitytabilitytabilitytabilitytability

• We are accountable for our individual
contributions to the products and services
provided by the Office.

VVVVValue-Aalue-Aalue-Aalue-Aalue-Adddddddddded Wed Wed Wed Wed Workorkorkorkork

• We provide the Legislative Assembly with value-
added reports.

PrPrPrPrProoooofessifessifessifessifessionononononal Conal Conal Conal Conal Conddddduuuuuctctctctct

• We adhere to the Office values in carrying out
our work.
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Professional ExcellenceProfessional ExcellenceProfessional ExcellenceProfessional ExcellenceProfessional Excellence

• We maintain sound audit methodology and
meet the professional standards and
competency requirements of our Office.

Financial StewardshipFinancial StewardshipFinancial StewardshipFinancial StewardshipFinancial Stewardship

• We use taxpayers’ money effectively and
efficiently.

Reporting
Principles
We prepare our Office plans and report on
operations using sound reporting principles.  We
based the principles on the public reporting
principles developed by the CCAF-FCVI Inc. and set
out in its publication called Reporting Principles -
Taking Public Performance Reporting to a New Level.
CCAF is a public-private partnership that “is a source
of support, leading edge research and capacity for
members of governing bodies, executive management,
auditors, and assurance providers”.1

The CCAF’s publication is the result of a multi-year
project on public performance reporting, which
involved extensive research and consultation with
government managers, auditors, and legislators
throughout Canada.  These principles are outlined
below:

1 .1 .1 .1 .1 . Focus on the few critical aspects ofFocus on the few critical aspects ofFocus on the few critical aspects ofFocus on the few critical aspects ofFocus on the few critical aspects of

performanceperformanceperformanceperformanceperformance

- focus selectively and meaningfully on a small
number of things;

- centre on core objectives and commitments.

2 .2 .2 .2 .2 . Look forward as well as backLook forward as well as backLook forward as well as backLook forward as well as backLook forward as well as back

- set out the goals and how activities
contribute to the goals;

- track achievements against expectations.

11111CCAF Publication:CCAF Publication:CCAF Publication:CCAF Publication:CCAF Publication:

Reporting Principles -Reporting Principles -Reporting Principles -Reporting Principles -Reporting Principles -

TTTTTakinakinakinakinaking Publicg Publicg Publicg Publicg Public

Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting

to a New Levelto a New Levelto a New Levelto a New Levelto a New Level
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3 .3 .3 .3 .3 . Explain key risk considerationsExplain key risk considerationsExplain key risk considerationsExplain key risk considerationsExplain key risk considerations

- identify the key risks;
- explain the influence of risk on choices and

directions and relate achievements to levels
of risk accepted.

4 .4 .4 .4 .4 . Explain key capacity considerationsExplain key capacity considerationsExplain key capacity considerationsExplain key capacity considerationsExplain key capacity considerations

- discuss capacity factors that affect the ability
to meet expectations;

- describe plans to align expectations and
capacity.

5 .5 .5 .5 .5 . Explain other factors critical to performanceExplain other factors critical to performanceExplain other factors critical to performanceExplain other factors critical to performanceExplain other factors critical to performance

- explain general factors such as changes in
the economic, social or demographic
environment that affect results;

- discuss specific factors such as standards of
conduct, ethics, and values, or performance
of other organizations that influence
performance;

- describe unintended impacts of activities.

6 .6 .6 .6 .6 . Integrate financial and non-financialIntegrate financial and non-financialIntegrate financial and non-financialIntegrate financial and non-financialIntegrate financial and non-financial

informationinformationinformationinformationinformation

- explain the link between activities and
desired results;

- show spending on key strategies and explain
how changes in spending affect results.

7 .7 .7 .7 .7 . Provide comparative informationProvide comparative informationProvide comparative informationProvide comparative informationProvide comparative information

- provide comparative information about past
performance and about the performance of
similar organizations when relevant, reliable
and consistent information is reasonably
available.

8 .8 .8 .8 .8 . Present credible information fairly interpretedPresent credible information fairly interpretedPresent credible information fairly interpretedPresent credible information fairly interpretedPresent credible information fairly interpreted

- present information as credible as reasonably
possible;

- explain management’s involvement,
judgement, and basis for interpretation of
performance;

- information is consistent, fair relevant,
reliable, and understandable.
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9 .9 .9 .9 .9 . Disclose the basis for reportingDisclose the basis for reportingDisclose the basis for reportingDisclose the basis for reportingDisclose the basis for reporting

- explain the basis for selecting the few
critical aspects of performance on which to
focus;

- describe changes in the way performance is
measured or presented;

- set out the basis on which those responsible
for the report hold confidence in the
reliability of the information being reported.

Code of
Professional
Conduct
Employees of the Office of the Auditor General
conduct themselves as professionals in their
approach to their work and take pride in their
accomplishments.  We encourage a positive and
professional attitude including a commitment to the
Office’s operating principles.  As well, all employees
must respect the confidentiality of information
acquired in the performance of their work.

In addition, our employees belong to professional
associations governed by by-laws and codes of
conduct that they are required to comply with in
carrying out their work in order to maintain good
standing in those associations.

All employees are required to take an Oath of
Allegiance and sign an Oath of Office and an annual
conflict of interest declaration.
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Services
The Auditor General is the auditor of the Public
Accounts of the Government including the “Summary
Financial Statements” and the “Special Purpose
Operating Fund and Special Funds Financial
Statements”.  The Summary Financial Statements
reflect a consolidation of the Special Purpose
Operating Fund and Special Funds Financial
Statement with the financial statements of all
organizations comprising the Government Reporting
Entity as published in Volume 4 of the Public
Accounts.

Under the authority of The Auditor General Act,
government organizations that are subject to audit
include government departments, Crown
organizations, government enterprises and
recipients of public monies.  Pursuant to our
legislated mandate, the type of audits and reviews
we undertake are as follows:

AAAAAttest Attest Attest Attest Attest Auuuuuditsditsditsditsdits - attesting to the adequacy, fairness
and appropriateness of reports prepared by
management (e.g. financial statements).

Audit of the Public AccountsAudit of the Public AccountsAudit of the Public AccountsAudit of the Public AccountsAudit of the Public Accounts - attesting to the
adequacy, fairness and appropriateness of the Public
Accounts and providing commentary on whether the
Government is presenting fairly its overall financial
situation in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

Compliance with Authority AuditsCompliance with Authority AuditsCompliance with Authority AuditsCompliance with Authority AuditsCompliance with Authority Audits - assessing and
commenting on the extent of compliance with
government legislation, including regulations and
other central government policies.

InvestigationsInvestigationsInvestigationsInvestigationsInvestigations - examining financial or operational
information relating to allegations of inappropriate
situations or practices.

VVVVValue-falue-falue-falue-falue-for-Mor-Mor-Mor-Mor-Monononononey Aey Aey Aey Aey Auuuuuditsditsditsditsdits - assessing and commenting
on the efficiency, economy and effectiveness with
which government organizations use their resources
to accomplish intended outcomes.

Governance ReviewsGovernance ReviewsGovernance ReviewsGovernance ReviewsGovernance Reviews - assessing and commenting
on the board governance of various public sector
and government funded entities.
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Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting - assessing and commenting
on business planning/strategic planning and
performance measurement within government
organizations, and the quality of accountability
information submitted to the Legislative Assembly.

Special AuditsSpecial AuditsSpecial AuditsSpecial AuditsSpecial Audits - requested by the Lieutenant
Governor in Council or the Minister of Finance, or by
resolution of the Standing Committee on Public
Accounts.  The nature of this work will vary and
includes the range of our audit services.

Joint AuditsJoint AuditsJoint AuditsJoint AuditsJoint Audits - conducting audits with a legislative
auditor from another level of government in relation
to any provincial funds that are spent under a joint
initiative with another jurisdiction.

In addition to these specific services, we strive to:

• encourage discussion and debate regarding
public sector management and accountability
issues;

• assist the Public Accounts Committee;

• develop professionals for Public Service; and

• support, adhere and promote the accounting and
assurance standards as recommended by the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Through our work and reports we encourage public
accountability and transparency.  We also promote
our firm belief that a special duty of care is owed to
the citizens of Manitoba by those charged with
managing public monies and those receiving public
monies.

Clients
Our clients are the Members of the Legislative
Assembly (MLAs), and through them, the citizens of
Manitoba.

Those who additionally benefit from our services
include Deputy Ministers, Departmental Managers,
and representatives of Crown Corporations and
government agencies.
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Clients’ Needs
Our clients expect:

• Non-partisan advice and assurance;
• Accurate and timely reporting of audit/review

findings;
• Effective and broad-based communication of

audit/review findings;
• Reports which provide practical and fair

recommendations; and
• Audits and reviews that focus on significant

public sector issues.

Key Risks
Risk Management is the process of making and
carrying out decisions that will minimize the
liabilities and effect of possible adverse events
(risks) upon the goals and objectives of an entity.

Our Office utilizes sound risk management practices to
ensure that we meet our objectives and achieve our
goals.  We have established control systems to reduce
the likelihood that risks would adversely affect our
ability to achieve our goals and objectives, while
fulfilling our responsibilities under The Auditor
General Act.

The following are our key risks and how we are poised
to mitigate those risks:

Loss oLoss oLoss oLoss oLoss of Inf Inf Inf Inf Indddddepenepenepenepenependddddenenenenencecececece

• We consider a loss or a perceived loss of our
independence to be a risk.  We believe that we
can address this risk by ensuring that we
operate in accordance with our Act without fear
of reprisal.  The Act provides us with our
examination parameters.  As an Office we
carefully guard our independence.

Loss oLoss oLoss oLoss oLoss of Crf Crf Crf Crf Credibilityedibilityedibilityedibilityedibility

• Stakeholders trust and value our assurance and
advice.  We are cognizant that we must gain and
keep that trust and ensure that our work and
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our reports are valued.  We strive to do this by
ensuring the quality and accuracy of our work
and communications.  Quality Assurance
practices are established in our Office and we
continue to seek ways to strengthen these
practices.

Lack oLack oLack oLack oLack of Relevanf Relevanf Relevanf Relevanf Relevance oce oce oce oce of Wf Wf Wf Wf Workorkorkorkork

• In order for our work to be beneficial to our
clients, we must ensure that our reports  are
meaningful to them.  We do this by ensuring
our reports deal with topics of interest to
legislators and citizens of Manitoba; are written
using clear, understandable language; and
provide sufficient background information to
help the reader understand the significance of
reported issues.  As well, we maintain an
awareness of the issues important to
legislators and the citizens of Manitoba.

Lack of Resources and CompetenciesLack of Resources and CompetenciesLack of Resources and CompetenciesLack of Resources and CompetenciesLack of Resources and Competencies

• The quality of our assurance and advice is
dependent on the knowledge, skills and ability of
our employees.  We offer training and
professional development opportunities to ensure
that they have the competencies to perform their
responsibilities in an effective and efficient
manner.  When necessary, we supplement our in-
house skills with external consultants that bring
specialist knowledge required for certain
assignments.

• We need the support of legislators to obtain the
required resources.  We annually present a
financial plan to the Legislative Assembly
Management Commission to request needed
resources.  If we do not have sufficient resources
to pay for the cost of our work force, we would
have to reduce the number of employees.  In this
event, we would be required to consider whether
to advise the Legislative Assembly that we had
insufficient resources to carry out our
legislative mandate.
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Reporting Process
To help ensure the factual accuracy of our
observations and conclusions, staff from our Office
maintain ongoing communication with senior
management throughout an audit or review.  Before
beginning the work, our staff meet with them to
discuss the objectives, criteria, and focus of our
work in general terms.  During the audit or review,
our staff meet with management to review progress
and ensure open lines of communication.  At the
conclusion of on-site work, management is briefed
on the preliminary results of the work.  A draft
report is then prepared and discussed with them.
Management provides written responses to our
recommendations and these are discussed and
incorporated into the final draft report.

Final reports of the Office are submitted to the
Speaker for tabling with the Legislative Assembly.
Each report is automatically referred to the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts.
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Achieving Our Vision,
Mission and Legislative
Mandate
This framework provides a synopsis of the link between our vision, mission,
legislative mandate and our activities, and outputs, to our strategic desired
outcome of improved public sector accountability, operating performance,
governance and management practice.

VisionVisionVisionVisionVision
As a leader in promoting enhanced accountability of government to the citizens of
Manitoba, the Office of the Auditor General will contribute to greater public trust
and confidence in the institutions of government.

MissionMissionMissionMissionMission
To contribute to effective governance by the Manitoba Legislature, we provide the
Members of the Legislative Assembly with independent assurance and advice on:
• government accountability information;
• compliance with legislative authorities; and
• the operational performance of government.



ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditorditorditorditorditor
GenGenGenGenGenerererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Actctctctct
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Effective May 1, 2002 a new Act was proclaimed
governing the activities of this Office called The
Auditor General Act.  The Auditor General Act
replaced The Provincial Auditor’s Act which was
enacted in 1969.

The Auditor General Act modernized the legislation
governing the work of legislative auditors.  This
legislation reflects current trends and practises in
legislative auditing and clarifies certain provisions
that needed to be expressed in clearer terms.

The Act was intended to achieve the following
objectives:

• Strengthen accountability and independence of
the Office of the Auditor General;

• Clarify the mandate of the Auditor General;

• Strengthen the Auditor General’s access to
information; and

• Ensure confidentiality of the Auditor General’s
work.

The full Auditor General Act is reproduced inThe full Auditor General Act is reproduced inThe full Auditor General Act is reproduced inThe full Auditor General Act is reproduced inThe full Auditor General Act is reproduced in

Appendix E.Appendix E.Appendix E.Appendix E.Appendix E.

The Auditor
General Act
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Audit of the
Public Accounts
December 2003December 2003December 2003December 2003December 2003

Our report Audit of the Public Accounts for theAudit of the Public Accounts for theAudit of the Public Accounts for theAudit of the Public Accounts for theAudit of the Public Accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2003year ended March 31, 2003year ended March 31, 2003year ended March 31, 2003year ended March 31, 2003 to the Legislative
Assembly continued to emphasize the importance of
the Government using the Summary Budget as the
primary tool for communicating its financial plans to
the Members of the Legislative Assembly and the
citizens of Manitoba instead of the current emphasis
on the Operating Fund budget.

The news release for our report focused on
encouraging legislators to discuss the implications
of the Province’s deficit position in conjunction with
a review of balanced budget legislation.  That
discussion has occurred and continues in a number
of forums.

Similarly, we recommended in our report that the
Government consider introducing legislative
amendments to eliminate the requirement for
separate Operating Fund Financial Statements and
provide the same level of detail on the Summary
Budget as is provided on the Operating Fund
Budget.

We also reported on the Government’s commitment
to recognize the employee future benefits liabilities
for health care facilities child and family services in
the Operating Fund Financial Statements in the 2005
fiscal year and the immediate recognition of the
liabilities in the Summary Financial Statements in
the 2003 Summary Financial Statements.

The Government has continued to improve the
financial statement disclosure in the Summary
Financial Statements in a number of ways including
the disclosure of the existence of environmental
liabilities, separate disclosure of both fixed and
floating interest rates on outstanding debt,
expanded disclosure of interest rates and
instalments due on loans and advances and
separate disclosure of cash and cash equivalents,
temporary and portfolio investments with parallel
treatment on the Statement of Cash Flow among
others.



MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004   |   Manitoba   |   Office of the Auditor General   | 2727272727

We commended the Province for identifying critical
standard SAP reports and communicating the
importance of their use to departments.

Other new recommendations included:

• That the Government formally commit to a date
for implementing the new Government
Reporting Model as recommended by the Public
Sector Accounting Board.  We provided an
example of what the Summary Financial
Statements would look like according to the
new model;

• That pension expense and any restatements
affecting the determination of a positive
balance for purposes of Balanced Budget
Legislation be recorded in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and
that amendments to Balanced Budget
Legislation be introduced to reference the
Summary Financial Statements, not the
Operating Fund Financial Statements as the
financial statements used in the determination
of a balanced budget; and

• That the Government set a firm target date for
the completion of its information gathering and
establish appropriate accounting policies for
the recognition of the major infrastructure
systems in the Summary Financial Statements.

Furthermore, in our Report we continued to reiterate
the following recommendations to improve the
financial reporting of the Public Accounts.

• That the Government adopt generally accepted
accounting principles for the recording of
tangible capital assets, changes in accounting
policies and correction of errors in the
Summary Financial Statements and Special
Purpose Financial Statements;

• That the quarterly reports of the Province be
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles(GAAP);

• That the Government consider amending The
Financial Administration Act to require
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards
for Senior Governments as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian
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Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA),
without exceptions (GAAP), be the basis of all
government financial reporting including the
Summary Financial Statements, the Summary
Budget and the Quarterly Reports.
Alternatively, we recommended that the
Government formally commit to the full
adoption of GAAP by a certain date;

• That Internal Audit and Consulting Services take
a lead role on an annual basis to review and
test controls in departments related to the
government wide information system for
Accounting, Logistics and Human Resource
processes – SAP; and

• That the Government address a variety of
outstanding issues related to the use of SAP
version 4.6B.

Other significant sections in our Report include:

• Our review of the symmetry between the
accounting principles of the Regional Health
Authorities, Manitoba Health and the Province
of Manitoba;

• An update on the results of our work under The
Auditor General Act with private sector auditors
engaged to audit entities within the
Government Reporting Entity (of the Public
Accounts);

• Performance reporting by Crown Entities;

• The auditor’s report on financial statements
prepared using a basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles;

• A review of GenTax: An integrated tax
processing software application implemented by
the Department of Finance;

• An issue we noted with respect to compliance
with authority and agreements; and

• Our summary of future CICA Handbook sections
both in accounting and assurance which may
effect the financial reporting and the audit of
the Public Accounts.
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Compliance and
Forensic Audits
August 2003August 2003August 2003August 2003August 2003

Our Office issued a report entitled, An ExaminationAn ExaminationAn ExaminationAn ExaminationAn Examination
of Le Collège de Saint-Bonifaceof Le Collège de Saint-Bonifaceof Le Collège de Saint-Bonifaceof Le Collège de Saint-Bonifaceof Le Collège de Saint-Boniface.  This examination
was requested by the Deputy Minister of Advanced
Education and Training to review allegations
concerning the Collège.  With the support of the
Collège, the scope of our examination was expanded
to also include a review of the financial, human
resources, and information technology practices at
the Collège.

The report contained 38 recommendations including
the need for documented policies clarifying
purchasing processes, travel and other expense
claims, and conflict of interest guidelines.
Strengthening management control practices in
these areas should improve human resources
management and enhance the overall management
control environment at the Collège.

September 2003September 2003September 2003September 2003September 2003

Our Office issued the report, Investigation of HeclaInvestigation of HeclaInvestigation of HeclaInvestigation of HeclaInvestigation of Hecla
Island Land and Property TransactionsIsland Land and Property TransactionsIsland Land and Property TransactionsIsland Land and Property TransactionsIsland Land and Property Transactions.  This report
reviewed allegations regarding the conduct of the
Department of Conservation, formerly the
Department of Natural Resources, concerning its
management of issues related to the resettlement
of Hecla Island.

The allegations principally related to inequitable
application of eligibility criteria for the awarding of
cottage lots, and the conflict of interest of ex-
landowners on Hecla Island [through a ministerial
advisory committee, commonly referred to as the
Hecla Advisory Committee (HAC)].  Additional
allegations related to the process for the awarding
of a lease to operate the marina at Gull Harbour on
Hecla Island and to the perception of preferential
treatment given to a family of a former Deputy
Minister of Natural Resources regarding a land
exchange on Hecla Island.
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The report indicated that the Department abdicated
its responsibility to ensure fairness, transparency
and accountability with respect to the resettlement
of Hecla Island.  The abdication was demonstrated
primarily by the failure to establish appropriate
processes and controls over the resettlement
program.

The Report also included a number of
recommendations related to past transactions and
to on-going operations.

June 2004June 2004June 2004June 2004June 2004

Subsequent to significant work conducted during the
past year, the Office issued the report InvestiInvestiInvestiInvestiInvestigatigatigatigatigationonononon
of Hydra House Ltd. and a Review of the Relatedof Hydra House Ltd. and a Review of the Relatedof Hydra House Ltd. and a Review of the Relatedof Hydra House Ltd. and a Review of the Relatedof Hydra House Ltd. and a Review of the Related
Department of Family Services and HousingDepartment of Family Services and HousingDepartment of Family Services and HousingDepartment of Family Services and HousingDepartment of Family Services and Housing
Financial Accountability FrameworkFinancial Accountability FrameworkFinancial Accountability FrameworkFinancial Accountability FrameworkFinancial Accountability Framework.  This report
consisted of two parts:

Part I – Hydra AllegationsPart I – Hydra AllegationsPart I – Hydra AllegationsPart I – Hydra AllegationsPart I – Hydra Allegations

This part detailed our findings, conclusions and
recommendations regarding allegations concerning
the operations of Hydra House Ltd., a recipient of
public monies.  Hydra House Ltd. is a for-profit,
privately owned corporation that is economically
dependent on provincial funding.

Part II – Department Financial AccountabilityPart II – Department Financial AccountabilityPart II – Department Financial AccountabilityPart II – Department Financial AccountabilityPart II – Department Financial Accountability
FrameworkFrameworkFrameworkFrameworkFramework

This part detailed our findings, conclusions and
recommendations regarding our review of the
Department of Family Services and Housing’s related
financial accountability framework and relationship
with external service providers.

Projects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects Underway

• Follow-up review of actions taken by St.
Boniface College to address recommendations
made in the August 2003 Audit Report.

• Compliance and Forensic Services have
completed the field work and plan to issue a
report during the summer of 2004 regarding an
investigation into allegations of inappropriate
tendering and purchase practices within the
Maintenance Branch of the Manitoba Housing
Authority.
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• Field work is completed and a draft report will
be issued in 2004 regarding the administration
of the Community Child Day Care Standard Act
by the Child Day Care Branch in the Province.

Value-for-Money/
Project Audits
March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004

The Office issued a consolidation of reports in the
report entitled, A Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown Corporations
Council and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance Audits.  The content was as
follows:

A Review of Crown Corporations CouncilA Review of Crown Corporations CouncilA Review of Crown Corporations CouncilA Review of Crown Corporations CouncilA Review of Crown Corporations Council

Discussed in Governance Services.

Family Services and Housing Child Protection andFamily Services and Housing Child Protection andFamily Services and Housing Child Protection andFamily Services and Housing Child Protection andFamily Services and Housing Child Protection and

Support ServicesSupport ServicesSupport ServicesSupport ServicesSupport Services

The purpose of our work was to review the grant
accountability relationships between four Child Care
Treatment Centres (CCTCs) and the Child and Family
Services Division (Division) of the Department of
Family Services and Housing (Department).  This
report assessed the adequacy of the Division’s
processes for awarding and distributing grants to
four CCTCs.  The report also assessed the
appropriateness of the Division’s monitoring
processes for ensuring that grants provided to CCTCs
are being used for the intended purposes.  CCTCs
are responsible for delivering an array of residential
and community based treatment services for
children, adolescents and families in Manitoba.

The report concluded that by not adequately
controlling the awarding and monitoring of grants
and not having adequate processes in place to
measure and report on the performance of CCTCs,
the Department is exposing itself to higher risks
than necessary, that public monies may not be spent
prudently or effectively.  The report provided 12
recommendations to the Department.
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A Review of the Student Records Section of theA Review of the Student Records Section of theA Review of the Student Records Section of theA Review of the Student Records Section of theA Review of the Student Records Section of the
Professional Certification and Student Records UnitProfessional Certification and Student Records UnitProfessional Certification and Student Records UnitProfessional Certification and Student Records UnitProfessional Certification and Student Records Unit

Our review focused on determining:  whether
school/school division data received by the Student
Records Section (Section) of the Professional
Certification and Student Records Unit (Unit) within
Manitoba Education, Training and Youth
(Department) is complete, accurate, timely and in a
format conducive to effective and efficient
processing by the Department; whether the design
of the information database and data collection
adequately supports the information needs of the
Unit; and whether information accumulated and
reported by the unit is complete, accurate, timely
and meets the needs/requirements of users
(students, graduates, schools, school divisions,
administrators and staff of the Department, other
educational organizations).

The report concluded that the student marks
component of the Education Information System
(EIS) is incomplete and compromised with respect to
the reliance one can place on information reported
by the Unit; the EIS Collection student module does
not adequately support the information needs of the
Unit; and the needs of users of the data are not
being met because the data being reported is not
always complete or reliable.  The report provided 3
recommendations to the Department.

Northern Manitoba Community Councils’ FinancialNorthern Manitoba Community Councils’ FinancialNorthern Manitoba Community Councils’ FinancialNorthern Manitoba Community Councils’ FinancialNorthern Manitoba Community Councils’ Financial

Reporting StandardsReporting StandardsReporting StandardsReporting StandardsReporting Standards

Our objective was to assess the financial reporting
standards required by the Department of Aboriginal
and Northern Affairs (Department) for Northern
Manitoba Community Councils.  The Department was
responsible for specific municipal services funding in
fifty Northern Communities.

The report concluded that the financial
accountability of Community Councils was weakened
because the Department did not require them to
abide by public sector accounting standards as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) nor did it require them to prepare annual
statements; that the Community Councils’ financial
reporting failed to meet the Department’s financial
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reporting standards that were not based on
generally accepted accounting principles; and that
limited action was taken to deal with the
organizations that received qualified or denied
opinions.  The report provided 4 recommendations
to the Department.

University of Winnipeg Financial ReviewUniversity of Winnipeg Financial ReviewUniversity of Winnipeg Financial ReviewUniversity of Winnipeg Financial ReviewUniversity of Winnipeg Financial Review

The objective of this review was to provide
independent insight into the contributing
components to the University’s accumulated deficit,
and to formulate a report that would provide a
common understanding of the contributors to the
deficit between University of Winnipeg
administration, its Audit Committee, its Board of
Regents, and the Council on Post Secondary
Education (COPSE).

The report contained a number of conclusions which
revolved around the fact that the University of
Winnipeg incurred deficits by not achieving its Board
approved budgets.  The report provided 12
recommendations to the University of Winnipeg; 2
recommendations applicable to both the University
of Winnipeg and COPSE; and 1 recommendation for
COPSE.

Hudson’s Bay Company Archives ReviewHudson’s Bay Company Archives ReviewHudson’s Bay Company Archives ReviewHudson’s Bay Company Archives ReviewHudson’s Bay Company Archives Review

The objective of this review was to determine if the
Archives of Manitoba, with respect to Archives
operations, was in compliance with the conditions of
the 1993 donation agreement between Hudson’s Bay
Company and the Province of Manitoba.

The review concluded that the Archives of Manitoba,
with respect to Archives operations, was operating
in compliance with the conditions of the 1993
donation agreement.

Update on the Municipal Financial Accounting andUpdate on the Municipal Financial Accounting andUpdate on the Municipal Financial Accounting andUpdate on the Municipal Financial Accounting andUpdate on the Municipal Financial Accounting and

Reporting Standards in ManitobaReporting Standards in ManitobaReporting Standards in ManitobaReporting Standards in ManitobaReporting Standards in Manitoba

The Office issued a report in October 2002 ReviewReviewReviewReviewReview
of Municipal Financial Accounting and Reportingof Municipal Financial Accounting and Reportingof Municipal Financial Accounting and Reportingof Municipal Financial Accounting and Reportingof Municipal Financial Accounting and Reporting
Standards in ManitobaStandards in ManitobaStandards in ManitobaStandards in ManitobaStandards in Manitoba.  The report recommended
that Manitoba adopt generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for local governments as
recommended by the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA).  In their response to
us, the Department of Intergovernmental Affairs
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indicated that they would take action on the
recommendation.  Our follow-up in 2004 was
conducted to assess whether action had been taken.

Our follow-up concluded that minimal action has
been taken.  As at February 2004, municipality
statements in Manitoba are not being prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

Reports to Be Issued in 2004Reports to Be Issued in 2004Reports to Be Issued in 2004Reports to Be Issued in 2004Reports to Be Issued in 2004

Fieldwork was completed on the following subjects.
Reports will be issued during 2004.

EnEnEnEnEnsurinsurinsurinsurinsuring Safety ang Safety ang Safety ang Safety ang Safety and Qud Qud Qud Qud Quality oality oality oality oality of Private Wf Private Wf Private Wf Private Wf Private Well Well Well Well Well Wateraterateraterater

in Manitobain Manitobain Manitobain Manitobain Manitoba

Our audit focused on Provincial practices with regard
to private water wells that supply drinking water for
human consumption.  The fieldwork for this audit
was substantially conducted from September 2002
to June 2003.

HomecareHomecareHomecareHomecareHomecare

The objectives of our audit were: to determine
whether an appropriate accountability framework is
in place at Manitoba Health to ensure performance
of the Regional Health Authorities meets
expectations regarding the Home Care Program; and
to determine whether the Home Care Program
within the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority has
an appropriate process in place for assessing and
reassessing homecare clients.  The majority of the
fieldwork was conducted between September 2003
and June 2004.

Management of TravelManagement of TravelManagement of TravelManagement of TravelManagement of Travel

Our overall objective was to assess whether
employee travel within the provincial government is
managed with due regard for economy and
efficiency.  The audit examined the adequacy and
usefulness of travel information; the sufficiency of
travel policy and guidelines; the potential for
volume discounts with high volume travel suppliers;
and the use of communication technology.  The
fieldwork portion of the audit was substantially
conducted from July 2003 to March 2004.
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Measuring and Reporting on PerformanceMeasuring and Reporting on PerformanceMeasuring and Reporting on PerformanceMeasuring and Reporting on PerformanceMeasuring and Reporting on Performance

• The Property Registry
• Organization and Staff Development
• Mail Management Agency

The objectives of our work were:

• to determine how well Special Operating
Agencies (SOAs) are measuring and reporting
on their performance;

• to assess whether they are achieving the
performance results expected of them; and

• if performance results are significantly less
than expected, to determine whether the SOAs
have taken reasonable, corrective measures.

These objectives were applied to a review of the
above three agencies.  A report on each of these
SOAs is planned.

PrPrPrPrProjects Uojects Uojects Uojects Uojects Unnnnnddddderway - Verway - Verway - Verway - Verway - Value-falue-falue-falue-falue-for-or-or-or-or-
Money/Project Audits InitiatedMoney/Project Audits InitiatedMoney/Project Audits InitiatedMoney/Project Audits InitiatedMoney/Project Audits Initiated
During 2003/04During 2003/04During 2003/04During 2003/04During 2003/04

During 2003/04, the Office changed the way in
which audits were selected, scoped and conducted
to incorporate an annual audit identification and
selection process, and modified the development
process for formal project outlines, and formal audit
plans.  Once projects have been assigned, audit
outlines and planning memorandum are prepared by
the Project Team Leader for approval at the Project
Management Team, consisting of the Auditor
General, the Deputy Auditor General, the Executive
Director, Strategic Initiatives, and the Executive
Director, Professional Practices.  During the year,
the following projects were initiated and are at
various stages in the audit process, with projected
completion dates from the summer of 2004 to the
spring of 2005:

• Contaminated Land SitesContaminated Land SitesContaminated Land SitesContaminated Land SitesContaminated Land Sites

- The objective is to assess whether the
Province has an adequate program for
managing its contaminated sites and whether
it is adequately accounting for its
performance.
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• Child and Family ServicesChild and Family ServicesChild and Family ServicesChild and Family ServicesChild and Family Services

- Our objectives are to determine whether an
adequate accountability framework was in
place to ensure service providers were
performing as expected by the Province; to
determine whether the funding model was
based on relevant and valid inputs to ensure
funding levels were consistent with the
quantity and quality of services expected; to
compare and contrast Manitoba’s
accountability framework and approach to
determining funding levels for agencies
within the framework and approaches used
by other Canadian jurisdictions; and to
determine whether agency operations were
appropriately controlled to ensure funds are
expended for the purposes intended.

• Public Sector Pension Plan ComparisonPublic Sector Pension Plan ComparisonPublic Sector Pension Plan ComparisonPublic Sector Pension Plan ComparisonPublic Sector Pension Plan Comparison

- Our objective is to assess whether similar
actuarial factors and values were used by
Manitoba’s crown corporations in determining
their pension fund liabilities and whether
these factors were reasonable.

• Provincial Nominee ProgramProvincial Nominee ProgramProvincial Nominee ProgramProvincial Nominee ProgramProvincial Nominee Program (Immigration)

- Our objectives are to determine whether the
assessment practices used by the Provincial
Nominee Program are fair, equitable, and
free of bias in order to help ensure that the
“best” qualified applicants are nominated for
immigration to Manitoba; and to determine
whether the Provincial Nominee Program is
appropriately managing and reporting
results.

• The Municipal BoardThe Municipal BoardThe Municipal BoardThe Municipal BoardThe Municipal Board

- Our objectives are to assess the Municipal
Board’s performance in delivering its
legislated mandate; and to determine the
extent of compliance by municipalities with
the borrowing by-laws sections of The
Municipal Act.

• Council on Post-Secondary EducationCouncil on Post-Secondary EducationCouncil on Post-Secondary EducationCouncil on Post-Secondary EducationCouncil on Post-Secondary Education (COPSE)

- Our objectives are to determine the extent to
which COPSE is in compliance with its Act; to
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determine whether COPSE has an appropriate
due diligence process in place for allocating
available funds in accordance with post-
secondary education priorities; and to
determine whether an appropriate
accountability framework is in place to
enable COPSE to meet its mandate.

• Government Services Management ofGovernment Services Management ofGovernment Services Management ofGovernment Services Management ofGovernment Services Management of

PropertiesPropertiesPropertiesPropertiesProperties

- Our overall objective is to assess whether
property management of government owned
and leased buildings (excluding housing
stock) by the Province is being administered
in an economic and efficient manner.

• Grant Accountability in Culture and HeritageGrant Accountability in Culture and HeritageGrant Accountability in Culture and HeritageGrant Accountability in Culture and HeritageGrant Accountability in Culture and Heritage

- The overall objective is to assess the
appropriateness of the administrative policies
and procedures governing the grants to four
major agencies, and whether grant
monitoring processes were adequate to
ensure that agencies used the grant funds
for the purposes intended.

• PharmacarePharmacarePharmacarePharmacarePharmacare

- Legislative Auditors in Canada, through the
Canadian Council of Legislative Auditors
(CCOLA) have agreed to the importance of
concurrent audits on topics of strategic
importance.  This would enable the
utilization of common audit criteria and audit
approaches in conducting their work.  During
2003/04, most legislative offices, including
Manitoba have agreed to undertake an audit
of the Pharmacare program in their
jurisdiction.

• Sport Manitoba Inc.Sport Manitoba Inc.Sport Manitoba Inc.Sport Manitoba Inc.Sport Manitoba Inc.

- The overall objectives are to assess Sport
Manitoba Inc.’s compliance with their
provincial agreement; and to review the
grant accountability relationship between
Sport Manitoba Inc. and provincial sporting
organizations.
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Governance
Reports
December 2003December 2003December 2003December 2003December 2003

The Office released a report entitled, Follow-Up OnFollow-Up OnFollow-Up OnFollow-Up OnFollow-Up On
Previously Issued Recommendations On BusinessPreviously Issued Recommendations On BusinessPreviously Issued Recommendations On BusinessPreviously Issued Recommendations On BusinessPreviously Issued Recommendations On Business
Planning and Performance MeasurementPlanning and Performance MeasurementPlanning and Performance MeasurementPlanning and Performance MeasurementPlanning and Performance Measurement.  The
“Follow-Up” concluded that after 36 months since
our recommendations were made, provincial
progress in developing and implementing a
planning, performance measurement and reporting
process has been very slow and without the benefit
of a systematic and cohesive approach.  The
“Follow-Up” report continues to encourage
Government to strengthen its commitment to the
central principles underlying effective planning,
measurement and public reporting.

March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004

The Office released a report entitled, A Review ofA Review ofA Review ofA Review ofA Review of
Crown Corporations CouncilCrown Corporations CouncilCrown Corporations CouncilCrown Corporations CouncilCrown Corporations Council.  This report examines
Crown Corporations Council’s performance in:
delivering its legislated mandate; relationship
building; and utilizing best practices in strategic
planning and management.  Crown Corporations
Council was established in 1989 in response to the
need to strengthen the accountability mechanisms
for the Province’s crown corporations.  Currently,
there are seven crown corporations under Council’s
purview including Manitoba Hydro, Manitoba
Lotteries Corporation and the Manitoba Public
Insurance Corporation.

Essentially the review found that there are
opportunities for Council to enhance its practices.
The report highlights the fact that three factors
made it difficult to assess Council’s performance:
first, the ambiguity of the legislative framework
governing Council; second, Council’s expected
outcomes are not sufficiently robust; and third, a
general absence of data at Council to demonstrate
its outcomes.  Based on the research undertaken for
this review, the report identifies a number of
learnings for organizations whose functions include
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activities similar to those performed by Council,
which include monitoring, providing advice, and
making recommendations.

March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004

Our Office released a report entitled, Attributes ofAttributes ofAttributes ofAttributes ofAttributes of
Managing and Reporting Results: A Survey ofManaging and Reporting Results: A Survey ofManaging and Reporting Results: A Survey ofManaging and Reporting Results: A Survey ofManaging and Reporting Results: A Survey of
Senior ManagementSenior ManagementSenior ManagementSenior ManagementSenior Management.  Managing and reporting
results is an approach to organizational
management which aligns all available inputs or
resources to have them work together in a
synchronized fashion for the purpose of realizing
particular goals and objectives.  A survey was
mailed to all Government Deputy Ministers, Assistant
Deputy Ministers and Directors/Executive Directors
asking them to rate the level of importance of each
of 49 attributes of managing for results, as well as
rating their department’s performance in relation to
each attribute.

The report presents a model of managing and
reporting results and explains the attributes of the
model.  It also presents the survey findings.

Based on survey responses there is a substantial
gap between what respondents consider to be
important attributes and actual performance in
implementing these attributes.

Projects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects Underway

• Enhancing Board Governance in the Voluntary
Sector.

• Voluntary Sector Practices in Performance
Reporting.

• Pension Plan Governance in Manitoba.

• Audit Committees in the Manitoba Public
Sector.
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Information
Technology Audits
August 2003August 2003August 2003August 2003August 2003

In conjunction with An Examination of the CollègeAn Examination of the CollègeAn Examination of the CollègeAn Examination of the CollègeAn Examination of the Collège
de Saint-Bonifacede Saint-Bonifacede Saint-Bonifacede Saint-Bonifacede Saint-Boniface conducted by the Compliance and
Forensic Services Group, IT Audit Services reviewed
computer security at the College and provided
recommendations on improvements that could be
made to computer security controls.

March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004March 2004

The Office issued three information technology (IT)
reports and noted that these reports highlight the
challenges those responsible for information
technology decision making in the public sector face
in order to optimize and govern the use of IT within
allocated funding.

Red River College of Applied Arts, Science andRed River College of Applied Arts, Science andRed River College of Applied Arts, Science andRed River College of Applied Arts, Science andRed River College of Applied Arts, Science and
TTTTTechnechnechnechnechnology IT Aology IT Aology IT Aology IT Aology IT Auuuuuditditditditdit

This audit examined the College’s Investment in IT.
We concluded that overall, the College had done a
good job of managing IT resources.  However, our
audit identified a number of areas for improvement
including:

• developing performance indicators for IT;

• regularly gauging user satisfaction with IT
systems and services;

• strengthening IT purchases and tendering
practices; and

• taking further actions to protect computer
networks.

The report contained 19 recommendations and the
Auditor General was encouraged that, at the time
the report was issued, the College had already
addressed a number of the recommendations.

InfInfInfInfInformormormormormatiatiatiatiation Ton Ton Ton Ton Technechnechnechnechnology Orology Orology Orology Orology Organizatiganizatiganizatiganizatiganizationonononon

Based on identified best practices, this audit
stressed the importance of the Province ensuring
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that the IT organizational structure be aligned with
government objectives and strategic plans, and
noted that a strong IT governance structure was
important to ensure that employees of the province
function effectively.

The report contained five recommendations that
involved:

• establishing an IT planning/steering committee

• adopting an IT governance framework;

• clarifying the roles and responsibilities of IT
management leaders;

• developing an IT performance measurement
system; and

• establishing an IT quality assurance function.

Computer Security Incident Response CapabilityComputer Security Incident Response CapabilityComputer Security Incident Response CapabilityComputer Security Incident Response CapabilityComputer Security Incident Response Capability

This audit reviewed the Province’s capability of
properly responding to computer security incidents
in Departments.  While the audit concluded that the
Province was capable of properly responding to
computer security incidents, the report contained
7 recommendations to further strengthen the
Province’s IT security including the need for:

• more timely application of security updates;

• development of a technology infrastructure plan
that addresses security concerns regarding
older computers and software no longer
supported by the developer;

• informing and educating users about computer
security;

• development of a plan to ensure that computer
system security logging and monitoring
activities are performed appropriately;

• determining if certain security activities should
be conducted not only during regular business
hours, but during off hours;

• the Province’s Risk Management Policy to
include specific requirements for risk
assessments to be conducted, as well as
disaster recovery/business continuity plans be
developed; and
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• clearly granting appropriate authority to handle
security incidents.

OtherOtherOtherOtherOther

IT Services provided support to other Service Groups
in the Office including conducting computer control
reviews in conjunction with attest audits and
extracting audit information from SAP.

Projects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects UnderwayProjects Underway

• Fieldwork has been completed and a report will
be issued in 2004 on the Management of
Software Licensing in Provincial Departments.

• Audit of Technological Infrastructure for Public
Accounts.

• Review of Provincial Expense Transactions using
Computer Based Analysis Techniques.

• Piloting of a revised Office Methodology for
assessing Computer Controls as part of the
audit of financial statements.

• Participating in financial statement audits with
regards to the documentation of computer
processing environments and the assessment of
computer-based controls.



ServiServiServiServiService Grce Grce Grce Grce Groupsoupsoupsoupsoups
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Financial Statement
Audit Services

GOGOGOGOGOALSALSALSALSALS

Assess whetherAssess whetherAssess whetherAssess whetherAssess whether

accountabilityaccountabilityaccountabilityaccountabilityaccountability

infinfinfinfinformation prormation prormation prormation prormation prooooovidvidvidvidvided bed bed bed bed byyyyy

thththththe Goe Goe Goe Goe Govvvvvernmernmernmernmernmenenenenent tt tt tt tt to tho tho tho tho theeeee

LegislativLegislativLegislativLegislativLegislative Ae Ae Ae Ae Assemblyssemblyssemblyssemblyssembly

and the public is fairand the public is fairand the public is fairand the public is fairand the public is fair

ananananand rd rd rd rd reliableliableliableliableliableeeee.....

PPPPPrrrrromomomomomote aote aote aote aote adddddoption ooption ooption ooption ooption offfff

Canadian Institute ofCanadian Institute ofCanadian Institute ofCanadian Institute ofCanadian Institute of

CharterCharterCharterCharterChartered Aed Aed Aed Aed Accounccounccounccounccountantantantantantttttsssss

(CICA) and Public Sector(CICA) and Public Sector(CICA) and Public Sector(CICA) and Public Sector(CICA) and Public Sector

AAAAAccounccounccounccounccountintintintinting Boarg Boarg Boarg Boarg Boarddddd

(PS(PS(PS(PS(PSAB) stanAB) stanAB) stanAB) stanAB) standardardardardards ads ads ads ads acrcrcrcrcrossossossossoss

all audit entities.all audit entities.all audit entities.all audit entities.all audit entities.

Promote improved AuditPromote improved AuditPromote improved AuditPromote improved AuditPromote improved Audit

Committee practises inCommittee practises inCommittee practises inCommittee practises inCommittee practises in

thththththe public secte public secte public secte public secte public sectororororor.....

Promote publicPromote publicPromote publicPromote publicPromote public

performance reporting inperformance reporting inperformance reporting inperformance reporting inperformance reporting in

annual reports by theannual reports by theannual reports by theannual reports by theannual reports by the

public sectpublic sectpublic sectpublic sectpublic sectororororor.....

Identify/monitorIdentify/monitorIdentify/monitorIdentify/monitorIdentify/monitor

emerging issues of publicemerging issues of publicemerging issues of publicemerging issues of publicemerging issues of public

sector significance.sector significance.sector significance.sector significance.sector significance.

Strengthen the role andStrengthen the role andStrengthen the role andStrengthen the role andStrengthen the role and

functions of the Publicfunctions of the Publicfunctions of the Publicfunctions of the Publicfunctions of the Public

Accounts Committee inAccounts Committee inAccounts Committee inAccounts Committee inAccounts Committee in

relation to this office.relation to this office.relation to this office.relation to this office.relation to this office.

Financial Statement Services strives to provide
effective, efficient, and economical attest services
to our clients.  These services include:

• Providing opinions on annual financial
statements, special reports, and public sector
compensation disclosures;

• Issuing client management letters to provide
financial, internal control, compliance, or
general operational recommendations;

• Conducting overview of government entities,
which may also encompass file reviews of their
private sector auditors.  This work is necessary
for our reliance on the work of the private
sector firms for consolidation of their clients’
financial statements into the Summary Financial
Statements for the Province;

• Completing special reports on financial
information, including claims; and

• Reviewing compliance with legislation to the
extent required for the issuance of financial
statement opinions.

Financial Statement Services conducts project audits
that are selected to complement the financial
expertise of employees and focus on grant
accountability and financial statement issues
regarding financial statements of provincially funded
entities.

Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04

• Provided in excess of 100 attest audit opinions,
and conducted partnered audits and overviews
on a timely basis. (see Appendix A for Financial
Statement Audits Within the Government
Reporting Entity Conducted by the Auditor
General’s Office, and Appendix B for Other
Financial Statement Audits Conducted by the
Auditor General’s Office)

• Issued audit opinions on the Public Accounts of
Manitoba in accordance with the statutory
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PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05

Provide attest auditProvide attest auditProvide attest auditProvide attest auditProvide attest audit

services for public sectorservices for public sectorservices for public sectorservices for public sectorservices for public sector

enenenenentitiestitiestitiestitiestities.....

Conduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduled

rrrrreeeeevvvvvenenenenenue anue anue anue anue and od od od od ovvvvvervieervieervieervieerviewwwww

audits as planned.audits as planned.audits as planned.audits as planned.audits as planned.

Complete scheduledComplete scheduledComplete scheduledComplete scheduledComplete scheduled

special prspecial prspecial prspecial prspecial projojojojoject wect wect wect wect work.ork.ork.ork.ork.

PrPrPrPrProoooovidvidvidvidvide re re re re responesponesponesponesponsivsivsivsivsiveeeee

service for  specialservice for  specialservice for  specialservice for  specialservice for  special

rrrrrequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmenenenenentttttsssss.....

Conduct a review of theConduct a review of theConduct a review of theConduct a review of theConduct a review of the

management ofmanagement ofmanagement ofmanagement ofmanagement of

derivatives in thederivatives in thederivatives in thederivatives in thederivatives in the

Province of Manitoba.Province of Manitoba.Province of Manitoba.Province of Manitoba.Province of Manitoba.

Expand the use ofExpand the use ofExpand the use ofExpand the use ofExpand the use of

information technology ininformation technology ininformation technology ininformation technology ininformation technology in

the performance of attestthe performance of attestthe performance of attestthe performance of attestthe performance of attest

assignments.assignments.assignments.assignments.assignments.

IIIIIssue rssue rssue rssue rssue requestequestequestequestequests fs fs fs fs fororororor

prprprprproposal foposal foposal foposal foposal for selor selor selor selor selectedectedectedectedected

attest audit partneringattest audit partneringattest audit partneringattest audit partneringattest audit partnering

arrarrarrarrarrananananangggggemememememenenenenentttttsssss.....

deadline and issued the Audit of the Public
Accounts Report to the Members of the
Legislative Assembly in December 2003, with
wide public release in January 2004.

• Provided an attest opinion on the Labour
Market Development Agreement between the
Government of Canada and the Government of
Manitoba for the year ended March 31, 2003.

• Issued a report on A Review of the SymmetryA Review of the SymmetryA Review of the SymmetryA Review of the SymmetryA Review of the Symmetry
Between the Accounting Principles of theBetween the Accounting Principles of theBetween the Accounting Principles of theBetween the Accounting Principles of theBetween the Accounting Principles of the
Regional Health Authorities, Manitoba HealthRegional Health Authorities, Manitoba HealthRegional Health Authorities, Manitoba HealthRegional Health Authorities, Manitoba HealthRegional Health Authorities, Manitoba Health
and the Province of Manitobaand the Province of Manitobaand the Province of Manitobaand the Province of Manitobaand the Province of Manitoba, which
contributed to positive changes in the
accounting for Employee Future Benefits of
Health Care workers and in improving the
consistency in financial reporting and disclosure
in Regional Health Authority annual audited
financial statements.

• Participated in many Audit Committee and
Board meetings of Public Sector entities.  This
involved increasing our communications to
enhance their understanding of our Office, our
specific audit plans, and to report on our
independence.

• Completed a survey of Audit Committees in
Manitoba’s government reporting entity.  The
information will be consolidated and reported
on by Governance Services in a report to be
released during 2004/05.

• Finalized a report with the Department of
Education, Citizenship and Youth on a review of
School Division Financial Accounting and
Reporting in the Province of Manitoba for
release in the fall of 2004.

• Successfully implemented TeamMate Software
as the electronic working paper software for
use in financial statement audits and the
accumulation client knowledge information.

• Continued, in conjunction with the
implementation of TeamMate, to update our
financial statement methodology to incorporate
most recent accounting and auditing standards
based on the CICA’s Professional Engagement
Manual.
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• Provided comments on a number of accounting
and auditing research papers issued by the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) and the
International Federation of Accountants.

• Responded to increasing requests for assistance
on financial issues from government
departments, crown corporations, and
agencies.

• Participated in Canadian Council of Legislative
Auditors (CCOLA) strategic issue information
exchanges.

• Held discussions with the Manitoba Institute of
Chartered Accountants on the impact on audit
opinions of the use of accounting principles
that are not in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in
municipalities, school division, and sponsored-
housing audited financial statements.

• Issued management letter to many of our
attest audit clients, providing financial, internal
control, compliance, governance, and general
operational recommendations.

• Continued to work in partnership with several
of the private audit firms as our agents in
providing financial statement attest services.

• Continued to offer comments and provide input
into audit plans, draft financial statements,
and management letters of public sector
entities, where we place reliance on the work
of their external auditors.

• Delivered a presentation on “New Assurance
Standards on Fraud” at the Financial Statement
Symposium organized by the Canadian Council
of Legislative Auditors.
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Information
Technology
Audit Services
Information Technology Audit Services conducts
audits in areas including the following:

• Controls over information technology;

• The economy and efficiency with which
information technology resources are managed;
and

• The effectiveness of information technology
initiatives within government.

In addition, assistance is provided to other Service
Groups in the Office.  This assistance consists of
gathering audit evidence electronically and
assessing automated controls to support audit
opinions of financial and other information.

Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04

• Conducting an audit of the management of
software licenses.

• Participated in the assessment of SAP controls
for the audit of the Public Accounts.

• Began participating in the assessment of
computer-based controls for other financial
statement audits.

• Assisted in obtaining computer-based data for
various audits conducted by other Service
Groups in the Office.

• Hosted the teleconferences and annual meeting
of the IT Committee of the Canadian Council of
Legislative Auditors.

GOGOGOGOGOALALALALAL
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PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05

Complete projectsComplete projectsComplete projectsComplete projectsComplete projects
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Compliance and
Forensic Audit
Services
Compliance with authority audits involve assessing
and commenting on the extent of compliance with
government legislation, including regulations and
other central government policies.

Forensic Services involves the detailed review and
assessment of financial and other information in
order to determine whether inappropriate
transactions or activities have taken place.

The work of Compliance and Forensic Audit Services
has continued to expand since this group was
established in our Office in late 1999, a result of
increasing demand for both compliance and forensic
services.

Although additional resources were allocated to
Compliance and Forensic Audit Services in 2002/03
from within our Office, further resources for the
Office overall are needed in order to ensure issues
being brought to our attention can be addressed in
a timely and effective manner.

Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04Our Accomplishments – 2003/04

• Publicly released reports to the legislature on
the following projects:

- An Examination of Le Collège de Saint-
Boniface;

- Investigation of Hecla Island Land and
Property Transactions; and

- Investigation of Hydra House Ltd. and A
Review of the Related Department of Family
Services and Housing Financial Accountability
Framework.

• Our report on Dakota Tipi First Nation GamingDakota Tipi First Nation GamingDakota Tipi First Nation GamingDakota Tipi First Nation GamingDakota Tipi First Nation Gaming
Commission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation GamingCommission and First Nation Gaming
Accountability in ManitobaAccountability in ManitobaAccountability in ManitobaAccountability in ManitobaAccountability in Manitoba that was released
in May 2003 put forward recommendations that
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PRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FOR
2004/052004/052004/052004/052004/05

Provide responsiveProvide responsiveProvide responsiveProvide responsiveProvide responsive

service for specialservice for specialservice for specialservice for specialservice for special

rrrrrequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmequest assignmenenenenentttttsssss.....

Conduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduledConduct scheduled

compliance audits ascompliance audits ascompliance audits ascompliance audits ascompliance audits as

planned.planned.planned.planned.planned.

InInInInIncrcrcrcrcrease rease rease rease rease resouresouresouresouresources fces fces fces fces fororororor

the performance ofthe performance ofthe performance ofthe performance ofthe performance of

Compliance withCompliance withCompliance withCompliance withCompliance with

AAAAAuthuthuthuthuthority auority auority auority auority auditditditditditsssss.....

Expanding the use ofExpanding the use ofExpanding the use ofExpanding the use ofExpanding the use of

information technologyinformation technologyinformation technologyinformation technologyinformation technology

in the performance ofin the performance ofin the performance ofin the performance ofin the performance of

compliancompliancompliancompliancompliance ance ance ance ance and fd fd fd fd forororororenenenenensicsicsicsicsic

assignmassignmassignmassignmassignmenenenenentttttsssss.....

Complete theComplete theComplete theComplete theComplete the

dddddeeeeevvvvvelelelelelopmopmopmopmopmenenenenent ot ot ot ot of af af af af a

Compliance Audit Manual.Compliance Audit Manual.Compliance Audit Manual.Compliance Audit Manual.Compliance Audit Manual.

Began the utilization ofBegan the utilization ofBegan the utilization ofBegan the utilization ofBegan the utilization of

TTTTTeamMate feamMate feamMate feamMate feamMate fororororor

Documentation of RequestDocumentation of RequestDocumentation of RequestDocumentation of RequestDocumentation of Request

Assessments and FileAssessments and FileAssessments and FileAssessments and FileAssessments and File

WWWWWork.ork.ork.ork.ork.

Develop an in-houseDevelop an in-houseDevelop an in-houseDevelop an in-houseDevelop an in-house

training course on Fraudtraining course on Fraudtraining course on Fraudtraining course on Fraudtraining course on Fraud

Awareness that can beAwareness that can beAwareness that can beAwareness that can beAwareness that can be

shared with othershared with othershared with othershared with othershared with other

legislative offices.legislative offices.legislative offices.legislative offices.legislative offices.

were incorporated into new gaming legislation
which was passed in 2004.

• Completed the fieldwork on two other projects
where reports are planned to be issued in
2004.

• Attended several meetings with citizens or
MLAs on issues of concern, and conducted
preliminary assessments of issues received.

• Successfully partnered with external experts in
specialized subject areas in conducting our
investigations and audits.

• Continued expanding our knowledge and
understanding through the attendance at
courses at the University of Manitoba, RCMP
headquarters, and office coordinated training.
Continued support of an employee studying for
their Investigative Forensic Accountant (IFA)
designation.

• Actively initiated the development of “A Fraud
and Misconduct Investigative Manual for
Legislative Offices”.

• A member of the Office of the Auditor General
of Canada assisted our Office in the
Examination of the Collège de Saint-Boniface.

• A member of our Office assisted the Office of
the Auditor General of Canada on their audit of
the Privacy Commissioner.

• Delivered a presentation on “Fraudulent
Financial Reporting“ to the Winnipeg Chapter of
the Financial Executive Institute.
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Value-For-Money/
Project Audit
Services

GOGOGOGOGOALALALALAL

AAAAAssess dirssess dirssess dirssess dirssess directly anectly anectly anectly anectly anddddd

prprprprprooooovidvidvidvidvide ae ae ae ae advice tdvice tdvice tdvice tdvice to tho tho tho tho theeeee

LegislativLegislativLegislativLegislativLegislative Ae Ae Ae Ae Assembly onssembly onssembly onssembly onssembly on

GoGoGoGoGovvvvvernmernmernmernmernmenenenenenttttt

perfperfperfperfperformanormanormanormanormance in a timce in a timce in a timce in a timce in a timelyelyelyelyely,,,,,

effectiveffectiveffectiveffectiveffective ane ane ane ane and econd econd econd econd economicalomicalomicalomicalomical

mannmannmannmannmannererererer.....

Value-for-Money or performance auditing examines
management practices, controls and reporting
systems with a focus on results.  In an effort to
ensure that the work of Value-For-Money/Project
Audit Services is viewed as value-added by the
Legislative Assembly and the general public, we
strive to:

• Select organizations or programs to examine
which manage considerable public resources or
which have a significant impact on their
stakeholders and the public in general; and

• Design our audits in such a way that we focus
on the key result areas of the organization or
program, and further, within these key result
areas, on those aspects at greatest risk of not
being managed with due regard for efficiency,
effectiveness and economy.

We believe that to be value-added, our services
must be responsive to the concerns of members of
the Legislative Assembly, as well as government
organizations and program administrators.  Focusing
on risk and key result areas, and engaging these
parties in the audit process, will help ensure our
findings and recommendations contribute to
improving government operations in critical areas.

We will analyze the information and assess whether
the results achieved indicate weaknesses in the
supporting processes, systems and resource base.
In examining these processes/systems we would
look for:

• Inefficiencies (i.e., duplication of effort, failure
to appropriately use Information Technology)

• Lack of due regard for economy;

• Whether key activities are in place and
functioning as intended;

• Adequacy of controls to safeguard assets from
theft or misuse; and
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PRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FORPRIORITIES FOR
2004/052004/052004/052004/052004/05

Conduct scheduled auditsConduct scheduled auditsConduct scheduled auditsConduct scheduled auditsConduct scheduled audits

as planned.as planned.as planned.as planned.as planned.

Complete projectsComplete projectsComplete projectsComplete projectsComplete projects

unununununddddderwerwerwerwerwayayayayay.....

Conduct our audits withinConduct our audits withinConduct our audits withinConduct our audits withinConduct our audits within

a more compresseda more compresseda more compresseda more compresseda more compressed

timeframe.timeframe.timeframe.timeframe.timeframe.

Begin uBegin uBegin uBegin uBegin usinsinsinsinsing Tg Tg Tg Tg TeamMate feamMate feamMate feamMate feamMate fororororor

documenting value-for-documenting value-for-documenting value-for-documenting value-for-documenting value-for-

money/project auditmoney/project auditmoney/project auditmoney/project auditmoney/project audit

work.work.work.work.work.

Maintain and update theMaintain and update theMaintain and update theMaintain and update theMaintain and update the

VVVVValue-Falue-Falue-Falue-Falue-For-Mor-Mor-Mor-Mor-Monononononeeeeey/Pry/Pry/Pry/Pry/Projojojojojectectectectect

Audit methodology on aAudit methodology on aAudit methodology on aAudit methodology on aAudit methodology on a

regular basis.regular basis.regular basis.regular basis.regular basis.

Revisit and update theRevisit and update theRevisit and update theRevisit and update theRevisit and update the

audit project operationsaudit project operationsaudit project operationsaudit project operationsaudit project operations

plan for potential auditsplan for potential auditsplan for potential auditsplan for potential auditsplan for potential audits

to be conducted duringto be conducted duringto be conducted duringto be conducted duringto be conducted during

the next two years.the next two years.the next two years.the next two years.the next two years.

• Adequacy of controls to ensure compliance with
related Acts or regulations.

Because our work is increasingly focused on
organizational performance, several factors can
have an impact on what we accomplish.  These
factors include the extent to which:

• Clearly stated and measurable performance
expectations have been established by
government organizations.

• Appropriately detailed performance information
has been gathered and analyzed by government
organizations.

• Processes and performance have been
benchmarked with comparable programs in
comparable jurisdictions; and

• Access to information and client staff resources
is provided in a complete, timely, and
cooperative manner.

Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04

• Issued a consolidation of reports in the report
entitled, A Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown Corporations
Council and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance AuditsCouncil and Compliance Audits.

• Completed the fieldwork on the following audits
with reports to be issued later this year:

- Ensuring Safety and Quality of Private Well
Water in Manitoba;

- Homecare;

- Management of Travel; and

- Measuring and Reporting on Performance in
Special Operating Agencies: The Property
Registry, Organization and Staff
Development, and Mail Management Agency.

• Activated the Project Management Team which
involves audit objective development, assigning
projects, approving audit outlines, and
approving audit planning memos.  During the
year the following audits commenced for
reporting next year in 2005:

- Contaminated Land Sites;

- Child & Family Services;
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- Public Sector Pension Plan Comparison;

- Provincial Nominee Program (Immigration);

- The Municipal Board;

- Council on Post-Secondary Education;

- Government Services Management of
Properties;

- Grant Accountability in Culture & Heritage;

- Pharmacare; and

- Sport Manitoba Inc.

• Engaged a representative from the Ontario
Provincial Audit Office to conduct a quality
assurance review on a value-for-money audit
engagement.  The results were positive, with
the conclusion that “Based on the results of the
Canadian Conference of Legislative Auditors’
value-for-money post-audit issuance review
guide, in my opinion, the value-for-money audit
was carried out in accordance with the
applicable generally accepted auditing standards
of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants”.  Recommendations were provided
and actioned to assist in improving the
efficiency of audits.

• Auditors at the Senior Audit and Audit
Associate levels attained training for Value-for-
Money Auditing conducted by representatives of
the Ontario Provincial Audit Office.

• During the 2003/04, TeamMate was being
configured by the Office for use in the conduct
of value-for-money/project audits.  It is
anticipated that the use of standardized audit
software should assist in improving the
efficiency of conducting these types of audits.
Training and use in the application is planned
for 2004/05.
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Professional
Practices
Role of Quality AssuranceRole of Quality AssuranceRole of Quality AssuranceRole of Quality AssuranceRole of Quality Assurance

As a legislative audit office, we are responsible for
a comprehensive, legislated audit mandate.  We
provide independent assurance and advice to
legislators on government accountability
information, compliance with legislative authorities,
governance and the operational performance of
government and its agencies.  Having responsibility
also means acting reliably and with consistency.
This is critical for our Office.  As Legislative
Auditors, we must exercise significant professional
judgement in carrying out our work and reporting
our findings and conclusions and providing audit
opinions.  For this reason, we have a quality
assurance system in place in our Office.  We want to
ensure the quality and consistency of our
judgements, compliance with professional standards
and the internal policies established by our Office,
and the achievement of high quality work.

The Executive Director, Professional Practice, is
responsible for the quality assurance system.  Our
professional staff are first and foremost responsible
for maintaining the quality of the work in the office.
The quality assurance system enhances the quality
of audits and encompasses all service areas,
reflecting the comprehensive mandate of our Office.
The system includes:

• Review ProcessReview ProcessReview ProcessReview ProcessReview Process – In this process, files and
reports are subjected to internal reviews to
ensure that the work performed complies with
professional standards and office policies.

• Report Pre-Issuance Procedures and Deputy/Report Pre-Issuance Procedures and Deputy/Report Pre-Issuance Procedures and Deputy/Report Pre-Issuance Procedures and Deputy/Report Pre-Issuance Procedures and Deputy/
Auditor General ConcurrenceAuditor General ConcurrenceAuditor General ConcurrenceAuditor General ConcurrenceAuditor General Concurrence – These
procedures help provide assurance that the
planning and conduct of the audit is adequate,
significant issues are handled appropriately, the
project report is appropriate or the financial
statements are fairly presented and the audit
opinion is appropriate.

GOALSGOALSGOALSGOALSGOALS

TTTTTo eno eno eno eno ensursursursursure compliane compliane compliane compliane compliancecececece

with professionalwith professionalwith professionalwith professionalwith professional

standards and thestandards and thestandards and thestandards and thestandards and the

internal policiesinternal policiesinternal policiesinternal policiesinternal policies

established by our Office,established by our Office,established by our Office,established by our Office,established by our Office,

and the achievement ofand the achievement ofand the achievement ofand the achievement ofand the achievement of

overall high qualityoverall high qualityoverall high qualityoverall high qualityoverall high quality

work.work.work.work.work.

TTTTTo eno eno eno eno ensursursursursure that the that the that the that the that the aue aue aue aue auditditditditdit

methodology utilized bymethodology utilized bymethodology utilized bymethodology utilized bymethodology utilized by

the Office reflectsthe Office reflectsthe Office reflectsthe Office reflectsthe Office reflects

current Canadian andcurrent Canadian andcurrent Canadian andcurrent Canadian andcurrent Canadian and

international standards.international standards.international standards.international standards.international standards.
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PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05

Ensure that workEnsure that workEnsure that workEnsure that workEnsure that work

continues to be executedcontinues to be executedcontinues to be executedcontinues to be executedcontinues to be executed

in accordance within accordance within accordance within accordance within accordance with

professional standardsprofessional standardsprofessional standardsprofessional standardsprofessional standards

and the internal policiesand the internal policiesand the internal policiesand the internal policiesand the internal policies

established by ourestablished by ourestablished by ourestablished by ourestablished by our

Office.Office.Office.Office.Office.

EnEnEnEnEnsursursursursure that Te that Te that Te that Te that TeamMate iseamMate iseamMate iseamMate iseamMate is

effectively utilized andeffectively utilized andeffectively utilized andeffectively utilized andeffectively utilized and

supports thesupports thesupports thesupports thesupports the

performance ofperformance ofperformance ofperformance ofperformance of

effective, efficient, andeffective, efficient, andeffective, efficient, andeffective, efficient, andeffective, efficient, and

economical workeconomical workeconomical workeconomical workeconomical work

conducted in accordanceconducted in accordanceconducted in accordanceconducted in accordanceconducted in accordance

with professionalwith professionalwith professionalwith professionalwith professional

standards and thestandards and thestandards and thestandards and thestandards and the

internal policiesinternal policiesinternal policiesinternal policiesinternal policies

established by ourestablished by ourestablished by ourestablished by ourestablished by our

Office.Office.Office.Office.Office.

Conduct a CCOLA QualityConduct a CCOLA QualityConduct a CCOLA QualityConduct a CCOLA QualityConduct a CCOLA Quality

Assurance Peer ReviewAssurance Peer ReviewAssurance Peer ReviewAssurance Peer ReviewAssurance Peer Review

on Financial Statementon Financial Statementon Financial Statementon Financial Statementon Financial Statement

Files of theFiles of theFiles of theFiles of theFiles of the

Saskatchewan ProvincialSaskatchewan ProvincialSaskatchewan ProvincialSaskatchewan ProvincialSaskatchewan Provincial

Audit Office.Audit Office.Audit Office.Audit Office.Audit Office.

WWWWWork in cooperork in cooperork in cooperork in cooperork in cooperation anation anation anation anation anddddd

collaboration withcollaboration withcollaboration withcollaboration withcollaboration with

representatives fromrepresentatives fromrepresentatives fromrepresentatives fromrepresentatives from

WWWWWestern Canaestern Canaestern Canaestern Canaestern Canadiandiandiandiandian

legislative officeslegislative officeslegislative officeslegislative officeslegislative offices

toward the long-termtoward the long-termtoward the long-termtoward the long-termtoward the long-term

objective of havingobjective of havingobjective of havingobjective of havingobjective of having

consistent auditconsistent auditconsistent auditconsistent auditconsistent audit

methodologies.methodologies.methodologies.methodologies.methodologies.

Develop a complianceDevelop a complianceDevelop a complianceDevelop a complianceDevelop a compliance

opinion and an internalopinion and an internalopinion and an internalopinion and an internalopinion and an internal

control opinion, and plancontrol opinion, and plancontrol opinion, and plancontrol opinion, and plancontrol opinion, and plan

for an appropriatefor an appropriatefor an appropriatefor an appropriatefor an appropriate

implementation forimplementation forimplementation forimplementation forimplementation for

Manitoba public sectorManitoba public sectorManitoba public sectorManitoba public sectorManitoba public sector

entities.entities.entities.entities.entities.

• Report Post-IssuanceReport Post-IssuanceReport Post-IssuanceReport Post-IssuanceReport Post-Issuance – All assurance
engagements are subject to a review after the
project report or financial statement audit
opinion is released.  This is a detailed review
to ensure the Office’s policies and procedures
and professional standards are met.

External RelationsExternal RelationsExternal RelationsExternal RelationsExternal Relations

Canadian and International professionals are placing
increased emphasis on quality assurance in an audit
office.  The International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board released new quality control
standards on February 2004.  The Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants has approved new quality
control standards for firms performing assurance
engagements and quality control standards for
assurance engagements based on the new
international standards.  The standards will have an
effective date of December 1, 2005.

The Executive Director Professional Practice is a
member of the Quality Assurance Committee of the
Canadian Council of Legislative Auditors (CCOLA).
CCOLA recognizes the importance of having a quality
assurance approach for legislative auditors, and the
need for peer reviews that provide offices with
assurance that their systems with respect to audit
engagements are well designed and effective.  The
goal is to ensure compliance with professional
standards and the internal policies established by
each legislative audit office.  The Committee
facilitates review of legislative offices by other
legislative audit offices.  During the year, the
Ontario Provincial Auditor’s Office reviewed one of
our value-for-money audit files.  Next year, we plan
to participate by reviewing financial statement audit
files in the Provincial Auditor’s Office of
Saskatchewan.

The Executive Director Professional Practice is also
participating in a working group consisting of
legislative audit office representatives from British
Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba to
review Western Canada methodologies with the
long-term objective of having consistent audit
methodologies in all Western provinces.
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Practice InspectionPractice InspectionPractice InspectionPractice InspectionPractice Inspection

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Manitoba
(ICAM) routinely conducts practice inspections of
audit firms involved in the practice of public
accounting as defined in the General Provisions of
the ICAM By-laws.  As a professional legislative
audit office, we voluntarily participate in this
process.  The objective of an inspection is to ensure
compliance with Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants standards.  In May 2002, the ICAM
conducted a practice inspection of our Office which
resulted in no significant findings.  The next practice
inspection will take place in approximately four
years from that date.

Audit MethodologyAudit MethodologyAudit MethodologyAudit MethodologyAudit Methodology

During 2003/04, we converted our existing paper
based audit methodology for our financial statement
audits onto the TeamMate electronic working paper
software package.  Our experience with TeamMate
has been very positive.  TeamMate supports the
performance of effective, efficient and economical
work conducted in accordance with professional
standards and the internal policies established by
our Office.  In 2004/05, we will implement
Teammate for our other service areas subsequent to
providing employee training on the software.  As
well, we will begin planning for the use of
TeamMate by our Agent auditors within the next two
years.
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Governance
Services

GOALSGOALSGOALSGOALSGOALS

Promote improved boardPromote improved boardPromote improved boardPromote improved boardPromote improved board

governance practices ingovernance practices ingovernance practices ingovernance practices ingovernance practices in

thththththe public secte public secte public secte public secte public sectororororor.....

PPPPPromote meaningfulromote meaningfulromote meaningfulromote meaningfulromote meaningful

public performancepublic performancepublic performancepublic performancepublic performance

reporting by the publicreporting by the publicreporting by the publicreporting by the publicreporting by the public

sectsectsectsectsectororororor.....

Support the use ofSupport the use ofSupport the use ofSupport the use ofSupport the use of

strategic/businessstrategic/businessstrategic/businessstrategic/businessstrategic/business

planning in the publicplanning in the publicplanning in the publicplanning in the publicplanning in the public

sectsectsectsectsectororororor.....

Governance Services provides assessments and
advice on issues related to:

• board governance within the public sector;

• practices within Government reporting entities
in strategic planning, performance
measurement and performance reporting; and

• managing for results.

Enhancing the effectiveness of corporate practices
in these areas contributes to improved
organizational effectiveness and stronger
accountability processes of public sector
organizations.  In this way, the work of Governance
Services directly supports the Office’s vision of being
a leader in building greater public trust and
confidence in the accountability of Government to
the citizens of Manitoba.

Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04

• Completed a review of the board governance
practices of Le Collège de Saint-Boniface,
contained within a report released to the
Legislature entitled, An Examination of LeAn Examination of LeAn Examination of LeAn Examination of LeAn Examination of Le
Collège de Saint-BonifaceCollège de Saint-BonifaceCollège de Saint-BonifaceCollège de Saint-BonifaceCollège de Saint-Boniface (September 2003).

• Completed a report released to the Legislature
entitled, Follow-Up on Previously IssuedFollow-Up on Previously IssuedFollow-Up on Previously IssuedFollow-Up on Previously IssuedFollow-Up on Previously Issued
Recommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning andRecommendations on Business Planning and
Performance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance ReportingPerformance Reporting (December 2003).

• Completed a review of Crown Corporations
Council.  Findings and recommendations were
released in a report to the Legislative Assembly
entitled, A Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown CorporationsA Review of Crown Corporations
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil (March 2004).

• Completed a report released to the Legislature
entitled, Attributes of Managing and ReportingAttributes of Managing and ReportingAttributes of Managing and ReportingAttributes of Managing and ReportingAttributes of Managing and Reporting
Results: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior ManagementResults: A Survey of Senior Management
(March 2004).
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PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05

Conduct a follow-up onConduct a follow-up onConduct a follow-up onConduct a follow-up onConduct a follow-up on

the Government’sthe Government’sthe Government’sthe Government’sthe Government’s

progress in implementingprogress in implementingprogress in implementingprogress in implementingprogress in implementing

recommendations in ourrecommendations in ourrecommendations in ourrecommendations in ourrecommendations in our

December 2001 report onDecember 2001 report onDecember 2001 report onDecember 2001 report onDecember 2001 report on

“Policy Development“Policy Development“Policy Development“Policy Development“Policy Development

Capacity WithinCapacity WithinCapacity WithinCapacity WithinCapacity Within

GovernmentGovernmentGovernmentGovernmentGovernment

DepartmDepartmDepartmDepartmDepartmenenenenenttttts”s”s”s”s”.....

Undertake a review ofUndertake a review ofUndertake a review ofUndertake a review ofUndertake a review of

the state of strategicthe state of strategicthe state of strategicthe state of strategicthe state of strategic

planning within selectedplanning within selectedplanning within selectedplanning within selectedplanning within selected

government reportinggovernment reportinggovernment reportinggovernment reportinggovernment reporting

entities.entities.entities.entities.entities.

Report on the survey ofReport on the survey ofReport on the survey ofReport on the survey ofReport on the survey of

Audit Committees inAudit Committees inAudit Committees inAudit Committees inAudit Committees in

ManitManitManitManitManitoba’oba’oba’oba’oba’s public sects public sects public sects public sects public sectororororor.....

Report on enhancingReport on enhancingReport on enhancingReport on enhancingReport on enhancing

board governanceboard governanceboard governanceboard governanceboard governance

practices in the not-for-practices in the not-for-practices in the not-for-practices in the not-for-practices in the not-for-

prprprprprooooofit sectfit sectfit sectfit sectfit sectororororor.....

Conduct a governanceConduct a governanceConduct a governanceConduct a governanceConduct a governance

review of public sectorreview of public sectorreview of public sectorreview of public sectorreview of public sector

pension plan boards.pension plan boards.pension plan boards.pension plan boards.pension plan boards.

TTTTTestinestinestinestinesting ang ang ang ang and rd rd rd rd refinefinefinefinefinemememememenenenenent ot ot ot ot offfff

audit program for boardaudit program for boardaudit program for boardaudit program for boardaudit program for board

governance reviews.governance reviews.governance reviews.governance reviews.governance reviews.

Act as an internalAct as an internalAct as an internalAct as an internalAct as an internal

resource on governanceresource on governanceresource on governanceresource on governanceresource on governance

issues as they arise inissues as they arise inissues as they arise inissues as they arise inissues as they arise in

other audits.other audits.other audits.other audits.other audits.

• Completed a board governance review of the
Royal Winnipeg Ballet.  Findings of this review
provide the basis for a future report on board
governance in not-for-profit organizations,
expected to be released in Fall 2004.

• Commenced review of governance issues in
Department of Child & Family Services, in
conjunction with the audit conducted by Value-
for-Money/Project Audit Services.

• Developed an audit program for reviews of
board governance, which will be pilot-tested in
an upcoming board governance review of public
sector pension plans.

• Delivered presentations at an Organization and
Staff Development course on policy
development.

• Delivered a presentation on performance
measurement to University of Manitoba
graduate students in the Faculty of Political
Science.

• Prepared a number of speeches on governance
and public accountability for delivery by the
Auditor General at various conferences.
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GOALGOALGOALGOALGOAL

Ensure that theEnsure that theEnsure that theEnsure that theEnsure that the

accounting and officeaccounting and officeaccounting and officeaccounting and officeaccounting and office

administration isadministration isadministration isadministration isadministration is

conducted in anconducted in anconducted in anconducted in anconducted in an

effective, efficient, amdeffective, efficient, amdeffective, efficient, amdeffective, efficient, amdeffective, efficient, amd
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Administrative
Services
Administrative Services are the support services for
the Office.  The staff ensure that the accounting
and office administration are conducted in an
efficient and effective manner.  In addition, staff
spends time on human resource activities, meetings
and planning activities.

Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04

• Coordinated the preparation of the Office
budget and presentation material for the
Legislative Assembly Management Commission;

• Prepared monthly financial statements and
operations reports;

• Prepared the financial statements and
coordinated the financial statement audit of
the Office;

• Coordinated the preparation of the annual
Operations Report;

• Co-hosted with the Legislative Assembly Public
Accounts Committee, the Canadian Council of
Legislative Auditors (CCOLA) national
conference in conjunction with the conference
of the Canadian Council of Public Accounts
Committee (CCPAC);

• Updated the Office Disaster Recovery/Business
Continuation Plan;

• Developed a Sustainable Development Policy for
the office;

• Updated the Office Sustainable Development
Action Plan;

• Continued to update the Office Administration
manual;

• Coordinated office billing and time systems;

• Continued to expand and develop our internal
design and printing capabilities;
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• Coordinated external and Office-wide meetings
and staff travel;

• Participated on the Sustainable Development
Committee;

• Coordinated the human resource recruitment,
orientation and appraisal process;

• Coordinated office access and security systems;
and

• Provided day-to-day office support.PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05
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Manual.Manual.Manual.Manual.Manual.

Finalize and maintainFinalize and maintainFinalize and maintainFinalize and maintainFinalize and maintain the the the the the

Employee OrientationEmployee OrientationEmployee OrientationEmployee OrientationEmployee Orientation

Manual.Manual.Manual.Manual.Manual.

Update the SustainableUpdate the SustainableUpdate the SustainableUpdate the SustainableUpdate the Sustainable
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Expand on the internalExpand on the internalExpand on the internalExpand on the internalExpand on the internal

performance reportingperformance reportingperformance reportingperformance reportingperformance reporting

process.process.process.process.process.
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Computer Services continues to:

• provide support to our office hardware,
software, intranet and network services;

• provide reliable, secure systems; and

• support the other service areas in the Office
with the development of Computer Assisted
Audit Techniques (CAATs), retrieval of
information from government systems, and
general information technology support.

Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04Our Accomplishments - 2003/04

• Successful implementation of the main
component of the electronic working paper
software called TeamMate.

• Implement Blackberry Wireless Messaging
Services to improve remote email access.

TTTTTeamMeamMeamMeamMeamMate Implemate Implemate Implemate Implemate Implemenenenenentatitatitatitatitationonononon

• In October 2003 we completed the development
of a TeamMate application for our financial
statement audit services.  In October and
November all audit team members attended a
3 day in-house workshop to assist them in
making the transition to the TeamMate audit
environment.

• In April 2004 we completed the development of
a TeamMate application for our other services
(performance, compliance, information
technology and investigative auditing, as well
as our governance and performance reporting
reviews).  Our goals in developing this
TeamMate application were to:

- enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of
our audit planning, issue management and
reporting processes,

- ensure greater consistency in file structure
within and between our product lines,

- enhance our quality assurance processes,
and

Computer Services
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- facilitate greater knowledge sharing.

• In the spring of 2004 a 2 day workshop was
developed to orient team members to our
revamped audit processes and the Teammate
application.  These workshops will be available
to team members throughout the summer and
fall.
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Human Resources
The future for our Office is exciting, but demands
that we maintain strong competencies and skill sets.
The complexity of issues in the public sector is
increasing, which in turn brings complexity to the
issues we must address.  As an Office, we need to
provide continuous professional development, and to
offer competitive salaries and excellent working
conditions in order to attract and retain skilled and
dedicated employees.

Our Office continues to receive an increasing
number of requests from citizens, administration,
and members of the Legislative Assembly to provide
assistance in reviewing issues they are bringing to
our attention.  We are experiencing difficulties in
reviewing and addressing these important issues on
a timely basis, given our limited staffing resources.
As well, with the proclamation of The Auditor
General Act in May 2002, our work has expanded in
relation to our financial statement involvement with
private sector auditors.  The staffing level in the
Office has remained relatively constant over a
number of years.

Monies approved for our Office by the Legislative
Assembly Management Committee (LAMC) are not
sufficient to enable us to maintain a staffing level
equivalent to our approved complement of 53
permanent positions.  During 2004/05, we once
again plan to request funding from the LAMC for 53
permanent positions.

Some of our HR activities/events during the past
year were as follows:

• Effective April 1, 2003, the Office
reorganization took effect with the
establishment of an Executive Director,
Strategic Initiatives position and an Executive
Director, Professional Practices position, both
reporting to the Deputy Auditor General and
Chief Operating Officer.  This reorganization
recognized the importance of strategic
planning, implementation of electronic working
paper software, the importance of a core
competency framework initiative, and the

GOALSGOALSGOALSGOALSGOALS
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expanded role of quality assurance in our
Office.

• The Project Management Team met many times
throughout the year to ensure the start-up and
focus of audit projects being conducted by the
Office.

• The Office continued with the assignment of
Audit Principals to sectors as areas of
responsibility for the conduct of all types of
audits.  This alignment is consistent with the
organization of other legislative offices in
Canada and should achieve benefits in ensuring
that Audit Principals achieve stronger sector
knowledge.

• The audit universe and operations audit plan
for 2003/04 was confirmed with audits being
initiated in accordance with the plan.
Employees were given the opportunity to work
on a variety of audit types and subject matters
that would supplement their areas of auditing
expertise.

• During 2003/04, work continued on the
development of a Core Competency Model to be
used in the hiring and development of
employees for our Office.

• A number of Audit Principal and general staff
meetings were held during the year to discuss
new initiatives and audit reports.

• In June 2003, the Office Intranet was
introduced.

• The Office participated in the University of
Manitoba recruitment initiative through the
Manitoba Institute of Chartered Accountants
and hired one new CA summer student.  During
2003/04, three articling summer students
worked with our Office.

• During the year, one staff member obtained his
Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA)
designation.  As well, two employees
successfully completed both their education and
articling requirements, leading to their
attainment of the CA designation.
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• In the summer of 2003, one Audit Principal
assisted the Office of the Auditor General of
Canada with the audit of the Privacy
Commissioner.

• Staff received Team Mate Training in the fall of
2003.

• During the year, six employees received value
for money auditing training conducted by the
Ontario Provincial Audit Office.

• During the year, one employee was promoted
to Acting Audit Principal; three employees were
promoted to the Audit Associate level; two
employees were reclassified to the Audit
Associate level; two employees left our Office
for positions outside of the province; one
employee left our Office for a position at the
University of Manitoba; one employee left for a
position at Elections Manitoba; three former
summer students commenced work as full-time
articling Auditors; two new employees joined
our Office, and one former employee rejoined
our Office.

• An active social committee in the Office
planned a number of events that were attended
by staff members and their families.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTPROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTPROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTPROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTPROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEECOMMITTEECOMMITTEECOMMITTEECOMMITTEE

The Office continued to provide a quality learning
and development environment for all employees.
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require that
staff conducting audits have adequate technical
training and proficiency in auditing.  Our
professional staff have a responsibility to keep
abreast of current developments in the profession
and in the legislative environment.  The Professional
Development Committee (Committee) provided one
source of training to assist staff to maintain and
enhance their technical standards and proficiency in
auditing.

The Committee ensured that training and
development opportunities were consistent with
areas of strategic importance to the Office and that
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sufficient training was provided to meet professional
educational requirements.

This year, the Committee planned and coordinated
five programs, courses and lectures.  These covered
a wide range of topics including CICA Handbook and
PSAB updates, training for the new TeamMate
electronic working paper software package and
interviewing techniques.  Computer training was
made available to staff on an “as needed” basis and
staff were encouraged to take advantage of self-
directed learning opportunities, with the Office
covering a portion of the cost.

The Committee also provided “Sunrise Speaker”
series of presentations by speakers from outside of
the Office on areas of interest to staff.

For the upcoming year, the Committee will continue
with its mandate, and plans to offer a broad range
of professional development opportunities.  By
investing in the professional knowledge of staff, the
Office is helping to ensure the continuation of high
quality audit services.

OTHER TRAINING AND PROFESSIONALOTHER TRAINING AND PROFESSIONALOTHER TRAINING AND PROFESSIONALOTHER TRAINING AND PROFESSIONALOTHER TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIESDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIESDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIESDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIESDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES

In addition to training provided by the Professional
Development Committee, staff attended external
training and development courses, seminars and
conferences.

The Office coordinated the participation of Senior
Auditors and audit Associates in value-for-money
audit training provided by the Ontario Provincial
Auditor’s Office.

Our Office is approved by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Manitoba as a training office and
supports articling students in their pursuit of the CA
designation.  This year one student wrote and
passed the CA Uniform Final Exam and earned the
CA designation.

Based on expressed interest and approval by the
Office, we support individual staff members in the
pursuit of specialist audit training applicable to the
legislative audit environment.  These specialities
include:
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• Information Technologist Audit Specialist;
• Certified Fraud Examiner;
• Investigative and Forensic Accounting; and
• Certified Internal Auditor.

External
Communications
The Office’s communication activities are an
essential contributor to the overall achievement of
the Office’s mission and desired outcomes.  Our
communication goals have two primary purposes:

• To heighten awareness of the findings and
recommendations made in our audit reports, in
order to improve their impact and contribution
to public sector effectiveness and
accountability; and

• To heighten awareness of the role,
responsibilities and activities of the Office.

The Office website - wwwwwwwwwwwwwww.oag.mb.oag.mb.oag.mb.oag.mb.oag.mb.ca.ca.ca.ca.ca – provides the
public with easy access to our reports, as well as to
information about our services and a link to the
CCOLA website providing access to all other
legislative auditors in Canada.  All Reports to the
Legislative Assembly and press releases are made
available on our website on the day of issuance.

In the past year, thirty presentations and numerous
interviews have been given by the Auditor General
on a wide variety of topics including:  Balanced
Budget Legislation, Public Leadership and
Accountability, Board Audit Committees, Policy
Development, School Board Governance, Role of the
Legislative Auditor, as well as on specific Reports.
Presentations have also been made by the Deputy
Auditor General and Chief Operating Officer and
several Audit Principals on specific Report findings
and accounting related topics.

Organizations which invited presentations from the
Office in the past year included:

• The University of Manitoba Leadership Forum;
• The Manitoba Chamber of Commerce;
• The Financial Executives Institute;

GOALGOALGOALGOALGOAL
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• The Government Exchange Conference, IPQC
(Ottawa);

• The Canadian School Boards Association
National Congress;

• The Leadership Academy for Trustees (Canmore,
Alberta);

• The International Personnel Management
Association National Conference;

• The Manitoba Municipal Administrators
Association;

• The Manitoba Association of School Trustees;
• Frontier Centre for Public Policy;
• The Institute of Internal Auditors;
• Organization & Staff Development;
• Board presentations to the College of

Registered Nurses of Manitoba, Addictions
Foundation of Manitoba, and a number of
Regional Health Authorities; and

• Student presentations to University of
Manitoba, University of Winnipeg, and the
Management Internship Program.

During the year, we had meetings with external
private sector auditors on various issues.  In one
situation we coordinated a meeting of external
auditors of the Regional Health Authorities to obtain
their input on certain accounting issue treatment.

As an officer of the Legislative Assembly, it is
imperative that the Auditor General be free to act in
the best interests of the Legislative Assembly, and
by extension, the public.  It is also important that
the Office of the Auditor General be open and
transparent about its activities.

The practice of the Auditor General with respect to
the media about an investigation was, and remains,
as follows:

• When all appropriate parties have been notified
that an investigation is to take place, the
Auditor General will confirm that fact to the
media if asked.  This communication will
include general information about the
objectives of the investigation.

• During an investigation and when asked, the
Auditor General will provide comment, when he
deems it appropriate, on matters already on
the public record and on the progress of the
investigation.
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• Information that would be detrimental to the
investigation will not be made public.

• The findings, conclusions and recommendations
arising out of the investigation will not be
made public until the Members of the
Legislative Assembly have been provided with
the report on the investigation.

The above practice has served the Office of the
Auditor General well and balances the right of the
public to know about the activities of the Office with
the Office’s need to conduct an effective
investigation.  In numerous cases, members of the
public have come forward with valuable information
which has assisted an investigation because they
became aware of the investigation through the
media.

External Liaison
THE CANADIAN COUNCIL OFTHE CANADIAN COUNCIL OFTHE CANADIAN COUNCIL OFTHE CANADIAN COUNCIL OFTHE CANADIAN COUNCIL OF
LEGILEGILEGILEGILEGISLASLASLASLASLATIVE ATIVE ATIVE ATIVE ATIVE AUDITUDITUDITUDITUDITORS (CCOLA)ORS (CCOLA)ORS (CCOLA)ORS (CCOLA)ORS (CCOLA)
STUDY GROUPSSTUDY GROUPSSTUDY GROUPSSTUDY GROUPSSTUDY GROUPS

1.  Planning and Coordinating1.  Planning and Coordinating1.  Planning and Coordinating1.  Planning and Coordinating1.  Planning and Coordinating
     Committee     Committee     Committee     Committee     Committee

Planning and Coordinating Committee (P&C) is the
executive committee of the Canadian Council of
Legislative Auditors (CCOLA).  For 2003/04 the
committee was chaired by the Auditor General of
Manitoba.  P&C were responsible for preparation of
the CCOLA Business Plan and submitting it for
approval to CCOLA.  CCOLA priorities for the
upcoming year included:  enhancing the health
performance indicator reporting; encouraging the
conduct of concurrent or collaborative audits;
aligned audit methodology; and compliance with the
Canadian Public Accountability Board’s quality
assurance criteria.

2.  Strategic Issues Group2.  Strategic Issues Group2.  Strategic Issues Group2.  Strategic Issues Group2.  Strategic Issues Group

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Strategic
Issues Study Group, a committee composed of
senior executives of each legislative audit office,
including Canada.  Offices benefit from collectively
considering proposed solutions for urgent and
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emerging accounting and assurance issues.  The
committee actively addressed many issues for cross-
Canada input from various legislative offices.
Guidance on issues and studies is provided to other
CCOLA committees where needed.

The Committee was chaired from August 2002 to
September 2003 by the Deputy Auditor General from
Manitoba.

3.  Human Resource Management3.  Human Resource Management3.  Human Resource Management3.  Human Resource Management3.  Human Resource Management

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Study Group
on HR (HR) Management.  The objectives of this
study group are to:

• Provide a network to share information on HR
practices and initiatives as they apply to
legislative auditing;

• Promote HR best practices; and

• Develop HR-related surveys.

In 2003/04, the committee conducted a number of
surveys and compiled comparative HR information
for reference by legislative offices.

4.  Quality Assurance4.  Quality Assurance4.  Quality Assurance4.  Quality Assurance4.  Quality Assurance

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Quality
Assurance Committee (Committee).  The objective of
the Committee is to develop a common quality
assurance methodology, for use by legislative audit
offices, in reviewing the quality of professional work
performed in their offices.

New Canadian and international standards on quality
control standards underscore the need for quality
control and the importance of conducting quality
assurance reviews to ensure that audit work meets
professional standards and public expectations.
Accordingly, CCOLA approved the conversion of the
existing Quality Assurance Study Group into a
standing committee last year.

The Committee co-ordinates the reviews of
legislative audit offices by other legislative audit
offices using the quality assurance methodology and
tools developed by the Committee.  Last year, a
representative from the Ontario Provincial Auditor’s
Office reviewed a value-for-money audit file.  The
representative confirmed that our work was
performed in accordance with the value-for-money
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auditing standards recommended by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants, and accordingly
included such tests and other procedures as was
considered necessary in the circumstances.

During 2004/05, the Committee will be revising its
quality assurance methodology and tools to reflect
the new Canadian quality control standards.  Also,
our Office will participate in the inter-jurisdiction
reviews by reviewing financial statement audit files
in the Provincial Auditor’s Office in Saskatchewan.

5.  P5.  P5.  P5.  P5.  Perferferferferformanormanormanormanormance Rce Rce Rce Rce Reportineportineportineportineporting ang ang ang ang anddddd
     Auditing     Auditing     Auditing     Auditing     Auditing

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Performance
Reporting and Auditing Study Group, which has the
following main objectives:

• To share among the legislative audit community
experiences and research in the reporting and
auditing of non-financial performance
information both nationally and internationally;

• To advance the state of public reporting of non-
financial performance information by federal/
provincial/territorial governments and their
agencies; and

• To advance the practice of providing assurance
on non-financial performance information.

Over the past year the Study Group continued its work
in developing a compendium of audit methodology
based on the experiences of the Canadian legislative
audit community.  The Study Group is also in the
process of developing a common approach to
auditing performance reports using CCAF Principles
of Reporting.

6.  Inf6.  Inf6.  Inf6.  Inf6.  Information Tormation Tormation Tormation Tormation Technechnechnechnechnololololology Committeeogy Committeeogy Committeeogy Committeeogy Committee

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Information
Technology Committee which provides input on best
practices used in the audit and support of
information technology, and provides advice on IT
issues, including the use and maintenance of the
CCOLA Website.  The Committee meets annually to
discuss the use of information technology to
improve the performance of legislative audit offices,
including the methods and procedures used to audit
information systems.
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During 2003/04, the Office hosted the annual
meeting and a number of teleconference meetings
of the Committee.  On behalf of the Committee, the
Office representative attended the annual CCOLA
conference.  Also, the Committee is working
towards delivering training on information
technology to general audit staff members of the
legislative audit offices.  In addition, Committee
members from the western Provinces held
teleconference meetings to discuss the approach
and forms to be used for documenting and
assessing computer control environments.

7.  Health Study Group7.  Health Study Group7.  Health Study Group7.  Health Study Group7.  Health Study Group

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Health Study
Group (HSG) that was established to consider audit
issues related to the September 11, 2000 First
Ministers CommuniquJ. The First Ministers agreed to
report regularly to Canadians on health status,
health outcomes and the performance of public
health services.  It was also agreed that each
Provincial government and the Federal government
would determine third party verification of their
health performance indicators.  Our Office was
requested by the Department of Health to conduct
third party verification which we provided through
an audit opinion that was included in Manitoba
Health’s September 2002 Health Indicators Report.

Health Indicator Reports are to be issued every two
years.  We have held discussions with Manitoba
Health during 2003/04 and will be performing the
audit of the 2004 indicators report.

During 2003/04 the Study Group developed a set of
common audit criteria to be used to conduct an
audit of Pharmacare (most jurisdictions have agreed
to undertaking this using a common approach).

8.  Governance8.  Governance8.  Governance8.  Governance8.  Governance

The Office is represented on the CCOLA Governance
Study Group, which was established in September
2003 to examine the effectiveness of public sector
governance, and explore the development of a
common approach to promoting and addressing
governance issues in the public sector.  Manitoba
assumed a lead role in establishing this Study Group
and developing its Terms of Reference.  The Group is
now chaired by Saskatchewan and includes
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representation from British Columbia, Alberta,
Quebec, New Brunswick and Canada.

OTHER CCOLA ACTIVITIESOTHER CCOLA ACTIVITIESOTHER CCOLA ACTIVITIESOTHER CCOLA ACTIVITIESOTHER CCOLA ACTIVITIES

9.  Financial Statement Symposium9.  Financial Statement Symposium9.  Financial Statement Symposium9.  Financial Statement Symposium9.  Financial Statement Symposium

The Auditor General, Deputy Auditor General and
Chief Operating Officer, Executive Director,
Professional Practice, and the Audit Principal in
charge of the audit of Public Accounts participated
in the annual CCOLA Financial Statement
Symposium.  Over the years, this symposium has
continued to provide an excellent forum for
discussing financial statement and auditing issues
unique to the public sector with other legislative
audit offices across Canada.

10.  CCOLA/CCP10.  CCOLA/CCP10.  CCOLA/CCP10.  CCOLA/CCP10.  CCOLA/CCPAAAAAC ConferC ConferC ConferC ConferC Conferenenenenencecececece

On an annual basis CCOLA co-hosts a Canadian
Conference with the Canadian Council of Public
Accounts Committees.  This Conference was hosted
in Winnipeg in September 2003.  An objective of the
Conference is to encourage dialogue between
Legislative Auditors and elected members of Public
Accounts Committees for all Canadian jurisdictions
that would strengthen the functioning of Public
Accounts Committees in Canada.

11.  W11.  W11.  W11.  W11.  Western CCOLA Initiativestern CCOLA Initiativestern CCOLA Initiativestern CCOLA Initiativestern CCOLA Initiativeseseseses

During 2002/03, the Auditor Generals and Deputy
Auditor Generals of British Columbia, Alberta,
Saskatchewan and Manitoba agreed to work
together in the development of a common audit
methodology.  This project is continuing with
working group members from each jurisdiction
exchanging information and research.



MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004   |   Manitoba   |   Office of the Auditor General   | 7 57 57 57 57 5

PPPPPARTIARTIARTIARTIARTICIPCIPCIPCIPCIPAAAAATITITITITION IN PROFESSION IN PROFESSION IN PROFESSION IN PROFESSION IN PROFESSIONALONALONALONALONAL
ORGORGORGORGORGANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZATITITITITIONSONSONSONSONS

CCAF-FCVICCAF-FCVICCAF-FCVICCAF-FCVICCAF-FCVI

The Office is represented on the Task Force on public
performance reporting.

Certified General AccountantsCertified General AccountantsCertified General AccountantsCertified General AccountantsCertified General Accountants
Association of ManitobaAssociation of ManitobaAssociation of ManitobaAssociation of ManitobaAssociation of Manitoba

The Office is represented on a committee of the
board.

Canadian Institute of CharteredCanadian Institute of CharteredCanadian Institute of CharteredCanadian Institute of CharteredCanadian Institute of Chartered
AccountantsAccountantsAccountantsAccountantsAccountants

The Office is represented on the following Public
Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) task forces:

• The Government Reporting Entity Task Force
• The Liabilities, Contingencies and Commitments

Task Force.

The Office is represented on the Assurance
Standards Board (ASB).

The Office is represented on the following ASB task
force:

• The Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
(GAAS) Hierarchy.

Financial Executives InstituteFinancial Executives InstituteFinancial Executives InstituteFinancial Executives InstituteFinancial Executives Institute

The Office is represented on the Board of the
Winnipeg Chapter.

Information Systems Audit and ControlInformation Systems Audit and ControlInformation Systems Audit and ControlInformation Systems Audit and ControlInformation Systems Audit and Control
AssociationAssociationAssociationAssociationAssociation

The Office is represented on the board of the
Manitoba Chapter.

Institute of Chartered Accountants ofInstitute of Chartered Accountants ofInstitute of Chartered Accountants ofInstitute of Chartered Accountants ofInstitute of Chartered Accountants of
ManitobaManitobaManitobaManitobaManitoba

The Office is represented on two committees of the
Institute:

• Office Practise Assistance Committee
• University Recruitment Committee

Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)

The Office is represented on the board of Winnipeg
Internal Auditors, the local Chapter of the IIA.
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IT Governance InstituteIT Governance InstituteIT Governance InstituteIT Governance InstituteIT Governance Institute

The Office is represented on the International Board
(based in Chicago).

OTHER MEMBERSHIPSOTHER MEMBERSHIPSOTHER MEMBERSHIPSOTHER MEMBERSHIPSOTHER MEMBERSHIPS

• Associates of I.A. Asper School of Business

• Association of Certified Fraud Examiners

• Canadian Evaluation Society

• Certified Management Accountants of Manitoba

• Conference Board of Canada

• Financial Management Institute

• Human Resource Management Association of
Manitoba

• The Institute of Corporate Directors

• The Institute of Public Administration of Canada

• The Institute of Public Administration -
Winnipeg Chapter

• Winnipeg Chamber of Commerce



FinancialFinancialFinancialFinancialFinancial
AAAAAccounccounccounccounccountabilitytabilitytabilitytabilitytability
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FINANCIAL MANAFINANCIAL MANAFINANCIAL MANAFINANCIAL MANAFINANCIAL MANAGEMENT DIGEMENT DIGEMENT DIGEMENT DIGEMENT DISCUSCUSCUSCUSCUSSISSISSISSISSIONONONONON
AND ANALAND ANALAND ANALAND ANALAND ANALYSIYSIYSIYSIYSISSSSS

The audited financial statements for the Office of
the Auditor General are provided in this report on
pages 81 to 88.

Estimate ProcessEstimate ProcessEstimate ProcessEstimate ProcessEstimate Process

As per Section 27(3) of The Auditor General Act, the
Office of the Auditor General receives funding from
the Legislative Assembly appropriations.  Late fall
each year, the Office makes a budget presentation to
the Legislative Assembly Management Commission.
This Commission provides the forum for the Office to
request salaries funding for complement positions and
operations funding.

The Office of the Auditor General maintains a bank
account for operating expenses independent from the
province.  Advances are provided by the Province up
to the amounts approved by the Legislative Assembly
Management Commission.

Note 6 to the financial statements summarizes the
approved funding for the past two years.  In both
years, the Office managed within its allocated funding
and returned unexpended balances to the
Consolidated Fund in accordance with Section 27(4)
of The Auditor General Act.

Balance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance Sheet

The accrued vacation payable has increased mainly
to an increase in the number of vacation days
carried forward from the prior year and an increase in
vacation entitlements.  This liability is matched with a
funding commitment from the Province of Manitoba.

The provision for employee severance benefits and
employee pension benefits has increased as a function
of increased employee years of service.  These
liabilities are matched with long-term funding
commitments from the Province of Manitoba.

YYYYYear’s Operear’s Operear’s Operear’s Operear’s Operatiatiatiatiationononononsssss

Audit fee revenue is consistent with that of the
previous year.

The increase in salaries for 2004 reflects increases
for cost of living, promotions and reclassifications
offset by position vacancies for a portion of the
year.
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Pension and other benefits is higher for 2004 as a
result of the impact of increased years of service
and position reclassifications.

Printing costs decreased as a result of reduced
supplier prices.

MANAMANAMANAMANAMANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FORGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FORGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FORGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FORGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STAAAAATEMENTTEMENTTEMENTTEMENTTEMENTSSSSS

The accompanying financial statements of the Office
of the Auditor General for the year ended March 31,
2004 are the responsibility of management of the
Office. Management has prepared the financial
statements to comply with The Auditor General Act
and with generally accepted accounting principles in
Canada. The financial information presented elsewhere
in this annual report is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

To ensure the integrity and objectivity of the
financial data, management maintains a
comprehensive system of internal controls including
an organizational structure that effectively
segregates duties. These controls provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are
appropriately authorized, assets are adequately
safeguarded and financial information is reliable
and accurate.

The financial statements have been audited by the
firm of Frostiak & Leslie, Chartered Accountants Inc.
Their report to the Members of the Legislative
Assembly, stating the scope of their examination and
opinion on the financial statements, appears on
page 80.

JJJJJon. Won. Won. Won. Won. W. Sin. Sin. Sin. Sin. Singletongletongletongletongleton, CA•CISA
Auditor General
June 9, 2004
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Balance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance Sheet
as at March 31, 2004as at March 31, 2004as at March 31, 2004as at March 31, 2004as at March 31, 2004
(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)

FINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STFINANCIAL STAAAAATEMENTTEMENTTEMENTTEMENTTEMENTS AND NS AND NS AND NS AND NS AND NOOOOOTESTESTESTESTES
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StatemStatemStatemStatemStatemenenenenent ot ot ot ot of Operf Operf Operf Operf Operatiatiatiatiationonononons ans ans ans ans and Nd Nd Nd Nd Net Aet Aet Aet Aet Assets Assets Assets Assets Assets Availablevailablevailablevailablevailable
YYYYYear Enear Enear Enear Enear Enddddded Med Med Med Med Marararararch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004
(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)
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StatemStatemStatemStatemStatemenenenenent ot ot ot ot of Cash Flowsf Cash Flowsf Cash Flowsf Cash Flowsf Cash Flows
YYYYYear Enear Enear Enear Enear Enddddded Med Med Med Med Marararararch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004ch 31, 2004
(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)(000s)
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Notes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004



MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004   |   Manitoba   |   Office of the Auditor General   | 8 58 58 58 58 5

Notes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial Statements
MMMMMarch 31, 2004arch 31, 2004arch 31, 2004arch 31, 2004arch 31, 2004
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Notes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004
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Notes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004
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Notes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial StatementsNotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004March 31, 2004
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Our Strategic
Planning Process
Our strategic plan is based on the Balanced Scorecard
model.  Through this approach, objectives, outcomes,
actions and performance measures are developed that
relate to four perspectives:  Clients; Internal Business;
Learning and Growing; and Financial.

The intent behind the model is to ensure that the
strategic plan contains complementary and inter-
related strategies from each perspective.  Collectively,
these perspectives ensure that a comprehensive and
balanced approach is taken in order to realize an
organization’s desired outcomes.  The desired
outcomes developed by our Office are outlined on the
following Figure.
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Our External PrioritiesOur External PrioritiesOur External PrioritiesOur External PrioritiesOur External Priorities

To achieve our desired outcomes for our clients, the
focus of our work will be to support and promote
within government reporting entities:

• the use of recognized accounting standards, e.g.,
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP), as enunciated by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB), and the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA);

• effective compliance with government
legislation/regulations, policies and procedures;

• the effective use of information technology;
• the effective use of strategic/business planning

and performance measurement;
• effective governance practices; and
• improved assessment and reporting on program

effectiveness.

Our Internal PrioritiesOur Internal PrioritiesOur Internal PrioritiesOur Internal PrioritiesOur Internal Priorities

To build on our ability to achieve our desired
outcomes, internal Office operations will focus on:

• enhancing coordination between our service
areas;

• developing employees as legislative auditors with
expanded skill sets and the ability to perform
increasingly complex audits of various types;

• strengthening teamwork capabilities; and
• improving communication and the exchange of

ideas within service areas and across the
organization as a whole.
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Summary of Results
According to 2003/04
Strategic Plan
In accordance with our 2003/04 Strategic Plan, the following provides a summary
of key actions completed over the past year to meet our desired outcomes.
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Summary of Results
According to 2003/04
Strategic Plan (cont’d.)
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Summary of 2005/07
Strategic Plan
The following strategies were developed as part of our three year strategic plan to
help us achieve our desired outcomes.  Specific action plans are developed for
each strategy on an annual basis.

Summary of Results
According to 2003/04
Strategic Plan (cont’d.)
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Summary of 2005/07
Strategic Plan (cont’d.)



|   Office of the Auditor General   |   Manitoba   |   MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 20049 69 69 69 69 6

Best Practices -
Critical Success
Factors
This is a list of critical factors or practices that we
consider to be essential ingredients of a quality
legislative office.  Essentially the critical factors
represent qualitative performance indicators against
which we benchmark our performance.
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Performance
Measurement
OverviOverviOverviOverviOverviewewewewew

As a key component of our strategic plan, the Office
is committed to performance reporting.  The
following information provides a synopsis of our
results in key performance areas.

As the work in the Office continues to evolve, we
will be reviewing and assessing future additional or
varied performance measures.

SalariSalariSalariSalariSalaries anes anes anes anes and Operd Operd Operd Operd Operatinatinatinatinating Expeng Expeng Expeng Expeng Expenditurditurditurditurditureseseseses

The following chart reflects the budget to actual
expenditures of the Office over the past five years.
The slight increase in expenditures mainly reflects
inflation and contractual salary adjustments.  The
level of staff in the Office has remained relatively
constant over the same period.
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Over the past five years, the Office has never
exceeded its overall funding as authorized by the
Legislative Assembly Management Commission.  We
have managed our finances prudently and have
returned unexpended amounts to the Consolidated
Fund.

Audit CostsAudit CostsAudit CostsAudit CostsAudit Costs

The average cost per audit hour is based on the
actual salary cost and benefits plus operating costs.
The audit hours are the total number of actual audit
hours for the year.

The average cost per audit hour for 2004 increased
slightly from the prior year.  This increase was due
to contractual increase in salaries paid, promotions,
increments, and to a slight decrease in the number
of direct audit hours.

The Office is a training office for people to become
Chartered Accountants, and the last few years have
seen an increase in the number of student auditors
in our employee composition.  In 2003/04 two
students received their Chartered Accountant’s
designation, resulting in salary increases.

Employee TimeEmployee TimeEmployee TimeEmployee TimeEmployee Time
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Every employee is required to complete bi-weekly
timesheets for each task done during the work day.
Internally, time is posted to audits, projects or
administration which includes support services,
executive management, general office
administration, professional development, etc.  The
Office uses the information to monitor performance
and to determine the actual cost of audits or
projects.

Our goal was that 75% of staff time be charged to
audits.  We achieved this goal for the past two
years.

In terms of our audit work, the following pie chart
provides a schematic of the percentage of time
spent on working hour tasks.

Professional Development andProfessional Development andProfessional Development andProfessional Development andProfessional Development and
TrainingTrainingTrainingTrainingTraining

On average the Office target is that 7% (6% + 1%)
of employees time be allocated to professional
development and training.  On an overall basis 7%
was achieved.  The training for 2003/04 was
determined from the training and development
needs of Services’ employees.

In addition to professional development and training
employees have during working hours, employees
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also spend additional hours taking courses and
enhancing their professional skills.  These hours are
not reflected in the 7% of employee time.

Client Satisfaction - MLA SurveyClient Satisfaction - MLA SurveyClient Satisfaction - MLA SurveyClient Satisfaction - MLA SurveyClient Satisfaction - MLA Survey

Our Office defines its primary clients as the citizens
of Manitoba, and their representatives, the Members
of the Legislative Assembly (MLAs).  The government
departments and organizations we audit are the
beneficiaries of our services.

To ensure that our services meet the needs and
expectations of our clients, the Office conducts a
survey of MLAs every three years.  We seek
information on the extent to which MLAs have read
our reports, their assessment and overall
satisfaction of our reports and their assessment of
the extent to which we achieve our desired
outcomes.

The MLA survey was administered in May 2002 by an
independent research firm to ensure respondent
confidentiality.  Our 2002 results indicated the
following:

• 86% of MLAs agreed that the work of our Office
contributes to improved public sector
accountability in Manitoba;

• 92% indicated that our Reports to the Legislative
Assembly (RTLs) are an important service;

• 92% felt that our RTLs deal with matters of
significance for the Legislative Assembly;

• 84% indicated they are satisfied with the overall
quality of our RTLs; and
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• 84% indicated that the RTLs deal with issues in
an unbiased and objective manner, and that the
recommendations made were fair and practical.

Client Satisfaction - Citizen SurveyClient Satisfaction - Citizen SurveyClient Satisfaction - Citizen SurveyClient Satisfaction - Citizen SurveyClient Satisfaction - Citizen Survey

As a further component of our performance
measurement strategy, the Office conducts a survey
of Manitoba citizens every three years in order to
guage public awareness of our Office; to measure
the accomplishment of our desired outcomes; and to
track changes in public perception of the Office over
time.  A previous survey was conducted in 1999.  In
December 2003 a Probe Research Omnibus survey
sampled 1,004 Manitobans.  The survey indicated
that approximately:

• 30% of Manitobans were aware of the work of
the Office;

• 40% of Manitobans feel that the Office helps
build greater trust, confidence and
accountability of government;

• 40% of Manitobans believe our work ensures
responsible use of public monies; and

• 40% of Manitobans feel our work has a positive
impact on government.

We will be utilizing this information in determining
how we can increase the awareness of our Office.

Employee SatisfactionEmployee SatisfactionEmployee SatisfactionEmployee SatisfactionEmployee Satisfaction

Our Office believes that a cooperative, energetic,
team environment that values and respects the
individual and promotes continuous learning and
growth is essential in order for us to achieve our
Mission and Vision.

Respect, honesty, integrity and openness form our
fundamental values.  A 2004 staff survey (91%
participation rate) indicated that 76% of
respondents were satisfied to be working in our
Office.  The next survey will be conducted during
2006.  Between now and then we will be striving to
further improve this measure through various human
resource and communication initiatives.
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Follow-up of RecommendationsFollow-up of RecommendationsFollow-up of RecommendationsFollow-up of RecommendationsFollow-up of Recommendations
Accepted by the GovernmentAccepted by the GovernmentAccepted by the GovernmentAccepted by the GovernmentAccepted by the Government

Overall, the majority of our recommendations are
accepted by the entities we audit, and by the
Ministers.  The Government is receptive to
implementing these recommendations.  Our MLA
survey of 2002 indicated that 83% feel that our
recommendations will improve the operations of
government, once implemented.

In March 2004, we initiated a follow-up process for
9 performance and 4 compliance audits.  These
audits included 206 recommendations spanning from
1997 to February 2002.  As part of our follow-up
process we asked management to provide us with
progress reports on the status of their
implementation efforts.  Most reports were received
by the end of May (9 reports dealing with 159
recommendations).  From the reports received,
management reported that 74% of recommendations
were either implemented or that significant progress
had been made in implementing the
recommendations.  For 10 recommendations,
circumstances had substantially changed and, as a
result, our recommendations were no longer
relevant.  We note that management only rejected
one of the recommendations made.

We are currently conducting review procedures on
the progress reports prepared by management and
will report our findings in more detail in a report to
the Legislature in the fall of 2004.

Requests for Special Audits/Requests for Special Audits/Requests for Special Audits/Requests for Special Audits/Requests for Special Audits/
ConsultationsConsultationsConsultationsConsultationsConsultations

Requests for Special Audits, investigations and
consultations has increased significantly over the
past year.  The Office reviewed the impact of
requests on its audit and resource planning and
staffing processes and decisions, and will continue
to request funding to cover the approved
complement staffing level.
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Speaking EngagementsSpeaking EngagementsSpeaking EngagementsSpeaking EngagementsSpeaking Engagements

In the past year, thirty presentations and numerous
interviews have been given by the Auditor General
on a wide variety of topics including:  Balanced
Budget Legislation, Public Leadership and
Accountability, Board Audit Committees, Policy
Development, School Board Governance, Role of the
Legislative Auditor, as well as on specific Reports.
Presentations have also been made by the Deputy
Auditor General and Chief Operating Officer and
several Audit Principals on specific Report findings
and accounting related topics.

Sustainable DevelopmentSustainable DevelopmentSustainable DevelopmentSustainable DevelopmentSustainable Development

In the spring of 2000, the Government of Manitoba
committed to implementing sustainable development
guidelines for operations of all departments,
entities and related corporations.  Our Office
established a Sustainable Development Committee
to review the guidelines and prepare an action plan.
We submitted the action plan to Government
Services in September 2002 and effective April 1,
2003 our Office began working toward the
achievement of the action plan.  The action plan is
contained in Appendix D of this report.

SUSUSUSUSUSTSTSTSTSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLIAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLIAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLIAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLIAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICYCYCYCYCY

The Office of the Auditor General will apply the
principles of sustainable development in all aspects
of its operations to achieve environmentally sound
and sustainable economic development.  Through its
decisions to provide information and services to the
Legislative Assembly and the people of the Province
of Manitoba, the Office of the Auditor General will
endeavour to meet the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations to
meet their needs.

The Office of the Auditor General recognizes that
our day to day activities, operations and other policy
responses impact on society and the environment in
a number of ways.  As such, the Office of the
Auditor General is committed to an integrated
planning approach that includes evaluating the
impact of our activities on the environment, natural
resources, and ecology of Manitoba.
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In order to reduce the impact of our Office on the
environment, we are committed to achieving
continuous improvement of our performance through
the development and implementation of an
environmental management policy and raising
awareness of sustainable development within our
Office and with those we interact with.

We intend to reduce our main environmental impacts
through improvements in:

• recycling initiatives;

• purchasing and contract management (including
paper);

• business and commuter travel;

• waste reduction; and

• continued engagement with other departments
and agencies to better understand and manage
social, environmental and ethical impacts of
our policies.

In particular we shall extend the scope of, and
better integrate, all aspects of sustainable
development into our business activities, including:

• Developing automated audit tools such as
electronic working papers to reduce the amount
of paper included in audit files;

• Ensuring compliance with all relevant
legislation;

• Measuring performance against objectives and
targets on a regular basis to identify strengths
and areas requiring further improvement;

• Continuing to extend and improve our
environmental management systems;

• Ensuring our staff and other support people,
including contractors, are aware of and actively
support our environmental programs; and

• Openly and publicly communicating progress on
these issues to internal and external parties
and responding appropriately to reasonable
requests for information.

Purchases shall be based on sustainable
development principles, including:
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• Careful consideration of the goods, product or
service’s impact on the environment, economy
and human health and well being.

• Preference being given to the purchase of
environmentally preferable goods and materials
(e.g., recycled, remanufactured and/or non-
toxic) whenever they perform satisfactorily and
are available at a reasonable price.

In addition to incorporating the principles of
sustainable development into our own systems and
processes, we will endeavour to include audits and
reviews of sustainable development activities
undertaken by Departments, Crown Corporations and
Agencies in our audit plans whenever practical.

ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2003/04ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2003/04ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2003/04ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2003/04ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2003/04

• Developed the OAG Sustainable Development
Policy.

• Increased shredding and recycling of paper
products.

• Increased recycling of all other products.

• Increased use of recycled paper.

• Decreased use of environmentally unfriendly
products.

• Included environmentally friendly technology
criteria in the Request for Proposal for the
lease of a new photocopier and fax machine.

• Implemented the use of TeamMate, an
electronic auditing software program to
increase efficiency, and reduce paper and
printer usage.

PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05PRIORITIES FOR 2004/05

• Integrate the OAG sustainable development
action plan into the OAG’s business planning
process.

• Develop performance indicators to measure
success in achieving sustainable development
goals.

• Include sustainable development guidelines,
policies and procedures in Office operating
manuals.
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• Explore the use of “green” hotels and facilities
where practical.

• Promote the acceptance of sustainable
development principles in government
departments and agencies through the
performance of compliance and environmental
audits.

• Continue to promote ongoing sustainable
development initiatives within the Office by:

- offering staff workshops or information
sessions.

- finding more “green” alternatives to
environmentally unfriendly products.

- further reducing waste and increasing
recycling.

- exploring ways of reducing total annual
consumption of utilities and other energy
resources.



AppendicesAppendicesAppendicesAppendicesAppendices
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Appendix
A

FinFinFinFinFinananananancicicicicial Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemenenenenent At At At At Auuuuudits Withindits Withindits Withindits Withindits Within
thththththe Governme Governme Governme Governme Governmenenenenent Reportint Reportint Reportint Reportint Reporting Eng Eng Eng Eng Entitytitytitytitytity
ConConConConConddddduuuuucted by thcted by thcted by thcted by thcted by the Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral’sal’sal’sal’sal’s
OfficeOfficeOfficeOfficeOffice
Summary Financial Statements
Consolidated Fund (Operating Fund and other Special Funds)
Fiscal Stabilization Fund
Debt Retirement Fund
Northern Affairs Fund
Amounts Paid to MLA’s

CROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZATITITITITIONSONSONSONSONS

Board of Administration under The Embalmers and Funeral
Directors Act

Brandon University (and subsidiaries)*
Centre Culturel Franco-Manitobain*
Cooperative Loans and Loans Guarantee Board
Cooperative Promotion Board
Council on Post Secondary Education
Economic Innovation and Technology Council*
Helen Betty Osborne Foundation
Horse Racing Commission*
Legal Aid Services Society of Manitoba
Manitoba Agricultural Credit Corporation*
Manitoba Centennial Centre Corporation*
Manitoba Crop Insurance Corporation
Manitoba Foundation
Manitoba Gaming Control Commission
Manitoba Habitat Heritage Corporation*
Manitoba Health Services Insurance Plan
Manitoba Hospital Capital Financing Authority
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation*
Manitoba Opportunities Fund Ltd.
Manitoba Trade and Investment Corporation
Manitoba Water Services Board*
Public Schools Finance Board
Special Operating Agencies Financing Authority
University of Manitoba (and subsidiaries)

GOVERNMENT ENTERPRISESGOVERNMENT ENTERPRISESGOVERNMENT ENTERPRISESGOVERNMENT ENTERPRISESGOVERNMENT ENTERPRISES

Leaf Rapids Town Properties Ltd.*

SPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERATING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIES

Manitoba Text Book Bureau*
Organization and Staff Development*
Public Trustee

* Audit conducted in partnership with a private sector accounting firm
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OthOthOthOthOther Finer Finer Finer Finer Finananananancicicicicial Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemenenenenent At At At At Auuuuuditsditsditsditsdits
ConConConConConddddduuuuucted by thcted by thcted by thcted by thcted by the Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral’sal’sal’sal’sal’s
OfficeOfficeOfficeOfficeOffice
All Charities Campaign
Brandon University Retirement Plan*
Civil Service Superannuation Fund
Elections Manitoba Returning Offices - 37th General Election
Estates and Trusts under Administration

by the Public Trustee
Labour Market Development Agreement
Manitoba Home Care Employees’ Benefits Trust Fund
Public Service Group Insurance Fund
Teachers’ Retirement Allowances Fund
University of Manitoba Pension Plans
University of Winnipeg (and subsidiaries)*
University of Winnipeg Pension Plan*

* Audit conducted in partnership with a private sector accounting firm

Appendix
B
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Appendix
C

FinFinFinFinFinananananancicicicicial Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemal Statemenenenenent At At At At Auuuuudits Withindits Withindits Withindits Withindits Within
thththththe Governme Governme Governme Governme Governmenenenenent Reportint Reportint Reportint Reportint Reporting Eng Eng Eng Eng Entitytitytitytitytity
ConConConConConddddduuuuucted by Private Sectorcted by Private Sectorcted by Private Sectorcted by Private Sectorcted by Private Sector
AAAAAccounccounccounccounccountintintintinting Firmg Firmg Firmg Firmg Firms With Overvis With Overvis With Overvis With Overvis With Overviewsewsewsewsews
PPPPPerferferferferformormormormormed by thed by thed by thed by thed by the Offie Offie Offie Offie Office oce oce oce oce of thf thf thf thf theeeee
AAAAAuuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereralalalalal

CROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGCROWN ORGANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZAANIZATITITITITIONSONSONSONSONS

Addictions Foundation of Manitoba
Assiniboine Community College
Child and Family Services of Central Manitoba
Child and Family Services of Western Manitoba
Communities Economic Development Fund
Crown Corporations Council
Deer Lodge Centre Inc.
Insurance Council of Manitoba
Keewatin Community College
Manitoba Adolescent Treatment Centre Inc.
Manitoba Arts Council
Manitoba Boxing Commission
Manitoba Cancer Treatment and Research Foundation
Manitoba Community Services Council Inc.
Manitoba Development Corporation
Manitoba Film and Sound Recording Development

Corporation
Manitoba Health Research Council
Red River College
Regional Health Authorities:

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority Inc.
Brandon Regional Health Authority Inc.
Burntwood Regional Health Authority Inc.
Churchill Regional Health Authority Inc.
Interlake Regional Health Authority Inc.
Nor-Man Regional Health Authority Inc.
North Eastman Health Association Inc.
Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.
Regional Health Authority - Central Manitoba Inc.
South Eastman Health/Saute Sud-Est Inc.
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority Inc.

Rehabilitation Centre for Children Inc.
Venture Manitoba Tours Ltd.
Winnipeg Child and Family Services
Winnipeg Floodway Authority Inc.

GOVERNMENT ENTERPRIGOVERNMENT ENTERPRIGOVERNMENT ENTERPRIGOVERNMENT ENTERPRIGOVERNMENT ENTERPRISESSESSESSESSES

Liquor Control Commission
Manitoba Hazardous Waste Management Corporation
Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
Manitoba Lotteries Corporation
Manitoba Product Stewardship Corporation
Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation
Workers Compensation Board of Manitoba
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SPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERASPECIAL OPERATING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIESTING AGENCIES

Civil Legal Services Agency
Companies Office
Fleet Vehicles Agency
Food Development Centre
Industrial Technology Centre
Land Management Services
Mail Management Agency
Manitoba Education Research and Learning Information
   Networks (Merlin)
Manitoba Securities Commission
Materials Distribution Agency
Office of the Fire Commissioner
Pineland Forest Nursery
Property Registry
Vital Statistics Agency

Appendix
C  (cont’d.)
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Appendix
D

Sustainable Development Action PlanSustainable Development Action PlanSustainable Development Action PlanSustainable Development Action PlanSustainable Development Action Plan
2004/052004/052004/052004/052004/05
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Appendix
D (cont’d.)

SustainSustainSustainSustainSustainable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmenenenenent At At At At Actictictictiction Planon Planon Planon Planon Plan
2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)
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SustainSustainSustainSustainSustainable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmenenenenent At At At At Actictictictiction Planon Planon Planon Planon Plan
2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)

Appendix
D (cont’d.)
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SustainSustainSustainSustainSustainable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmable Developmenenenenent At At At At Actictictictiction Planon Planon Planon Planon Plan
2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)2004/05 (cont’d.)

Appendix
D (cont’d.)
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Appendix
E

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Actctctctct
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)



|   Office of the Auditor General   |   Manitoba   |   MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004MARCH 2004120120120120120

Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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Appendix
E (cont’d.)

ThThThThThe Ae Ae Ae Ae Auuuuuditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Genditor Generererereral Aal Aal Aal Aal Act (conct (conct (conct (conct (cont’dt’dt’dt’dt’d.).).).).)
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AAAAAgggggenenenenentststststs
The Office of the Auditor General has continued with the
policy of using the services of private sector chartered
accountant firms to assist with the discharging of some of
the Office’s attest audit responsibilities.  These firms act as
Agents for the Auditor General under the authority of
Section 23(e) of The Auditor General Act, and we wish to
acknowledge their contributions in supplementing our staff
resources.  The following firms acted as our agents in respect
of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004:

BDO Dunwoody LLP
Booke and Partners
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Haugen Morrish Angers
KPMG LLP

Appendix
F

PrPrPrPrProoooofessifessifessifessifessionononononal Servial Servial Servial Servial Servicescescescesces
In addition the following firms/individuals worked with our
Office on specific engagements during the past fiscal year:

Aikins MacAulay & Thorvaldson:  Mr. T. Bock
Deloitte & Touche LLP:  Mr. B. Tario
Ellement & Ellement, Actuaries
Grant Thornton LLP:  Mr. R. Popel, Mr. R. Hamlin, Ms. G. Lorusso
Harris, Mr. E.:  Consultant
Harris Consulting Corporation
Hubert Bergeron Document Language Service
KPMG Forensic Inc.:  Mr. R. Anderson
Office of the Auditor General - Canada:  Mr. C. Asselin
Ontario Provincial Auditor’s Office:  Ms. S. Maskens
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP
Probe Research Inc.
Thompson Dorfman Sweatman:  Mr. B. Graham
Wood, Ms. R.:  Transcriber




